
Committee Agenda  

1

Area Planning Sub-Committee East
Wednesday, 18th January, 2017
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee East, which 
will be held at: 

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Wednesday, 18th January, 2017
at 7.30 pm .

Glen Chipp
Chief Executive

Democratic Services 
Officer

J. Leither Tel: (01992) 564243
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:

Councillors S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), N Avey, N Bedford, A Boyce, 
H Brady, W Breare-Hall, A Grigg, M McEwen, R Morgan, J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, 
B Surtees, G Waller, C Whitbread, H Whitbread, J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area or otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the 
meeting.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Public Relations Manager 
on 01992 564039.



Area Planning Sub-Committee East Wednesday, 18 January 2017

2

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  

1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking. 

2. The Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties).

If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery.”

2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUB-COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.

3. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 50)

To confirm the minutes of the last meetings of the Sub-Committee which included a 
reconvened meeting on 7 December 2016, the 7 December 2016 and 13 December 
2017. 

4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(Director of Governance) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, requires that the permission of 
the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, before urgent 
business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda of which the 
statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 51 - 116)

(Director of Governance)  To consider planning applications as set out in the attached 
schedule

Background Papers:

(i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 
representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 
schedule.  

(ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the properties 
listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East Wednesday, 18 January 2017

3

enforcement of planning control.

8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  

Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number

Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting.

Background Papers:  Article 17 - Access to Information, Procedure Rules of the 
Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
report is based;  and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political 
advisor.

The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date of the 
meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background papers.





Revised ST (October 2016)

Advice to Public and Speakers at the Council’s District Development Management 
Committee and Area Plans Sub-Committees

Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and Members of the Committee. 

Meetings of the District Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East 
and Area Plans Sub-Committee West are held at the Civic Offices in Epping. Meetings of Area 
Plans Sub-Committee South are held at Roding Valley High School in Loughton.

Can I speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting, by ringing the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak; you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are generally allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the 
local Parish or Town Council and the applicant or his/her agent. In some cases, a representative 
of another authority consulted on the application may also be allowed to speak.

What can I say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating 
to their presentation and answer questions from Committee members. 

If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Committee will determine the 
application in your absence.

If you have registered to speak on a planning application to be considered by the District 
Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East or Area Plans Sub-
Committee West, you will address the Committee from within the Council Chamber at the Civic 
Offices. If you simply wish to attend a meeting of any of these Committees to observe the 
proceedings, you will be seated in the public gallery of the Council Chamber.

Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with the application.

How are the applications considered?

The Committee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to an 
outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ presentations. 

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her 
agent. The Committee will then debate the application and vote on either the recommendations of 

http://www.eppingforesdc.gov.uk/


Revised ST (October 2016)

officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Committee. Should the Committee propose to 
follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, it is required to give its reasons for 
doing so.

An Area Plans Sub-Committee is required to refer applications to the District Development 
Management Committee where:

(a) the Sub-Committee’s proposed decision is a substantial departure from:

(i) the Council's approved policy framework; or
(ii) the development or other approved plan for the area; or
(iii) it would be required to be referred to the Secretary of State for approval as 

required by current government circular or directive;

(b) the refusal of consent may involve the payment of compensation; or

(c) the District Development Management Committee have previously considered the 
application or type of development and has so requested; or

(d) the Sub-Committee wish, for any reason, to refer the application to the District 
Development Management Committee for decision by resolution.

Further Information?

Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’



Area Planning Subcommittee East 2016-17
Members of the Committee and Wards Represented:

 

 

 

Chairman
Cllr Jones

Theydon Bois

Cllr C
Whitbread

Epping Lindsey 
and Thornwood

Common

Cllr Avey
Epping 

Hemnall

Cllr Bedford
Shelley

Cllr Brady
Passingford

Cllr Breare-
Hall

Epping 
Lindsey and 
Thornwood 
Common

Cllr Grigg
North Weald 

Bassett

Cllr Philip
Theydon Bois

Cllr Rolfe
Lambourne

Cllr Stallan
North Weald 

Bassett

Cllr Surtees
Chipping Ongar, 
Greensted and 

Marden Ash

Cllr H
Whitbread

Epping Lindsey 
and Thornwood 

Common

Cllr J M 
Whitehouse

Epping 
Hemnall

Vice-Chairman
Cllr Keska

Chipping Ongar, 
Greensted and 

Marden Ash

Cllr Boyce
Moreton and 

Fyfield

Cllr J M 
Whitehouse

Epping 
Hemnall

Cllr Morgan
Hastingwood, 
Matching and 

Sheering 
Village

Cllr Waller
Lower 

Sheering

Cllr McEwen
High Ongar, 

Willingale and 
the Rodings





1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee 
East

Date: 7 December 2016 

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 
High Street, Epping

Time: 7.00  - 7.50 pm

Members 
Present:

S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), N Avey, H Brady, A Grigg, 
M McEwen, R Morgan, J Philip, D Stallan, B Surtees, G Waller, C Whitbread, 
H Whitbread, J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse

Other 
Councillors:

Apologies: N Bedford, A Boyce, W Breare-Hall and B Rolfe

Officers 
Present:

J Shingler (Principal Planning Officer), A Hendry (Senior Democratic Services 
Officer), M Chwiedz (Performance Improvement Officer) and G J Woodhall 
(Senior Democratic Services Officer)

49. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

50. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings.

51. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors D Stallan 
and A Grigg declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by 
virtue of knowing the objector. The Councillors had determined that their interest was 
not prejudicial and they would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon:

 EPF/2183/16 – 16 Bassett Gardens, North Weald Bassett, Epping.

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor C Whitbread 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of 
being the Leader of the Council. The Councillor had determined that his interest was 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East 7 December 2016

2

not prejudicial and that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1903/16 – North Weald Airfield, Merlin Way, North Weald Bassett.

52. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

53. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 

RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1, 2, 6 and 12 be determined as set 
out in the schedule attached to these minutes.

CHAIRMAN



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/2611/15

SITE ADDRESS: Elms Farm 
Waples Mill Road
Abbess Beauchamp And Berners Roding
Ongar
Essex
CM5 0TE

PARISH: The Rodings - Abbess, Beauchamp and Berners

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Change of use and alterations to steel framed barns including 
additional floor space, to a mixed used of B1 office, B2 General 
Industrial, B8 Storage, lambing unit and museum and erection of 
new building for associated learning centre.

DECISION Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579896

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1201- 005 P!, 1509-001 P2, 003 P2, 004 P2, 005 P1, 006 
P4, 007 P4, 008 P3, 009 P2, 010 P3, 011 P2, 012 P3, 101 P3, 102 P3, 103 P3, 104, 
P1, 105 P1

3 No development shall have taken place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For 
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself. 

4 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

5 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents (staff) and visitors vehicles.

123

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579896


6 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

7 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

8 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]



9 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

10 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

11 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial 
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance 
with the management and maintenance plan.

 

123

 



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/0324/16

SITE ADDRESS: 71 Sheering Lower Road 
Sheering 
Essex 
CM21 9LG

PARISH: Sheering

WARD: Lower Sheering

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Provision of a new build detached two bedroom chalet bungalow

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=582443

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

3 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=582443


4 Prior to first occupation of the development the vehicular access shall be 
constructed at right angles to the highway boundary and to the existing carriageway. 
The width of the access at its junction with the highway shall not be less than 3 
metres and shall be provided with an appropriate dropped kerb vehicular crossing of 
the footway.

5 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

6 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

7 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.  

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered.

8 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

9 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

10 An assessment of flood risk, focussing on surface water drainage, shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement 
of the development. The assessment shall demonstrate compliance with the 
principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). The development shall be 
carried out and maintained in accordance with the approved details.



11 No development shall take place until details of foul water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

12 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

13 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other prepatory works 
until a Phase one habitat survey has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

123

 

123

 



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/1903/16

SITE ADDRESS: North Weald Airfield 
Merlin Way 
North Weald Bassett 
Epping
Essex 
CM16 6HR

PARISH: North Weald Bassett

WARD: North Weald Bassett

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

To extend the current vehicle compound in order to accommodate 
additional vehicles

DECISION: Refer to District Development Management Committee

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585933

Members voted against the recommendation to refuse, and then voted to refer the matter to 
District Development Management Committee for consideration, with a request that additional 
information be sought with regard to the need for the site in relation to emergency service 
provision, so that this can be considered by the DDMC.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585933


Report Item No: 12

APPLICATION No: EPF/2183/16

SITE ADDRESS: 16 Bassett Gardens 
North Weald Bassett 
Epping
Essex 
CM16 6DB

PARISH: North Weald Bassett

WARD: North Weald Bassett

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed front dormer window and two storey rear extension.

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586574

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed rear extension due to its depth and height and proximity to 
neighbouring boundaries will result in loss of light to the rear conservatory of 
Number 17 Bassett Gardens and the side facing living room window of number 17 
Bassett Gardens, such that there will be excessive harm to residential amenity 
contrary to policy DBE 9 of the adopted Local Plan. 

Members considered that the proposed rear extension would significantly adversely impact on the 
light and outlook enjoyed by the two neighbouring properties.

They discussed whether there was a way forward and concluded that the only way forward would 
be for a significant reduction in the size of the extension such that it would not impact on the 
neighbours.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586574


1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee 
East

Date: 7 December 2016 

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 
High Street, Epping

Time: 7.57  - 9.35 pm

Members 
Present:

S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), N Avey, H Brady, A Grigg, 
R Morgan, J Philip, D Stallan, B Surtees, G Waller, C Whitbread, 
H Whitbread, J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse

Other 
Councillors:

Apologies: N Bedford, A Boyce, W Breare-Hall and B Rolfe

Officers 
Present:

J Shingler (Principal Planning Officer), A Hendry (Senior Democratic Services 
Officer), M Chwiedz (Performance Improvement Officer) and G J Woodhall 
(Senior Democratic Services Officer)

54. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

55. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings.

56. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors N Avey and 
C Whitbread declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by 
virtue of having prior knowledge of the application. The Councillors had determined 
that their interest was not prejudicial and they would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/2251/16 – Mill House Farm, Theydon Road, Epping.

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors J Philip and 
S Jones declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by 
virtue of knowing the Parish Councillor speaker and the objector. The Councillor had 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East 7 December 2016

2

determined that their interest was not prejudicial and they would remain in the 
meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/2037/16 – 33 Piercing Hill, Theydon Bois, Epping.

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor A Grigg 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of 
knowing one of the speakers. The Councillor had determined that her interest was 
not prejudicial and she would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1546/16 – 15 Beulah Road, Epping. 

(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor P Keska 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of 
being a member of Ongar Town Council. The Councillor had determined that his 
interest was not prejudicial and he would remain in the meeting for the consideration 
of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/2483/16 – Land Adjacent to Ashton House, High Street, Ongar.

57. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

58. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 

RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 6 be determined as set out in 
the schedule attached to these minutes.

CHAIRMAN



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/1546/16

SITE ADDRESS: 15 Beulah Road 
Epping
Essex 
CM16 6RH

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed two storey rear extension and internal alterations

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585154

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos:  01, 02, 03C, 04B, 05I, 06E, 07I

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

4 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until details of the retained landscaping (trees / hedges) and their methods of 
protection (in accordance with BS5837:2012 -Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - Recommendations) have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details unless the Local Planning Authority gives its 
written consent to any variation.

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

123

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585154


Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/2004/16

SITE ADDRESS: Spain End 
The Street 
Willingale 
Ongar
Essex
CM5 0SJ

PARISH: Willingale

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Internal and external alterations to existing garage/workshop, to 
provide pool plant room, changing facilities and a new garage, to 
include the conversion of the existing garage to a garden 
machinery store/garage store, with the erection of a new external 
swimming pool.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586140

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall match in material, 
colour, style, bonding and texture those of the existing building.

3 Additional drawings that show details of the proposed new windows, doors and 
garage doors, by section and elevation at scales between 1:20 and 1:1 as 
appropriate, shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA in writing prior to the 
commencement of any works. 

4 Further photographic details and drawings of the types and colours of the hard 
surfacing surrounding the pool, the external pool lining, and the pool furniture shall 
be submitted to and approved by the LPA in writing prior to the commencement of 
any works.

5 No development or preliminary groundwork's of any kind shall take place until the 
applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the 
applicant and approved by the local planning authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586140


6 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

7 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

8 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

9 The hedging on the front boundary of the site indicated on drawing number 1617/28 
shall be protected and maintained during construction and thereafter retained.



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/2037/16

SITE ADDRESS: 33 Piercing Hill 
Theydon Bois 
Epping 
Essex
CM16 7JW

PARISH: Theydon Bois

WARD: Theydon Bois

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Renovation of existing former coach house with extension and 
basement to form a single family dwelling.

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586256

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed development due to the significant and excessive increase in size of 
the building amounts to inappropriate development harmful to the openness of the 
Green Belt.  In addition the introduction of hard surfacing, parking and domestic 
paraphernalia further adversely impacts on the openness of the Green Belt and the 
character and visual amenity of the area.  No very special circumstances exist 
sufficient to outweigh this harm and the development is therefore contrary to policies 
GB2A, GB8A of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the National Planning 
Policy Framework.

2 The proposed development due to the size and position of the extension and the 
introduction of hardstanding, parking and residential paraphernalia, will have an 
urbanising impact on the rural and open character of the area, contrary to policies 
CP2, and DBE1 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

Way Forward.
Members suggested that conversion of the existing dwelling with no extensions and minimal 
introduction of hardstanding and instruction of increased planting to soften the development may 
be more acceptable.

123

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586256


 



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/2251/16

SITE ADDRESS: Mill House Farm
Theydon Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 4DL

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Hemnall

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of 7 dwellings, car ports, landscaping and related 
development

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586757

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt and the proposal constitutes 
inappropriate development. Whilst the benefits of providing additional housing is a 
material consideration that weighs in favour of the development, as is the positive 
impact on the character of the conservation area, it is not considered that these, or 
any other material considerations, are sufficient enough to outweigh the harm to the 
Green Belt. Therefore no very special circumstances exist and the application is 
contrary to the guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework 
and policies CP2 and GB2A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

Way Forward.
Members suggested that the way to pursue the matter would be to put the site forward through the 
Call for Sites as part of the Current Local Plan process

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586757


Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/2436/16

SITE ADDRESS: 46 St Johns Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 5DP

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Single storey rear extension (Revised application to EPF/1599/16).

DECISION: Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587697

This application was deferred so that a members site visit can be carried out.

123

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587697


Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/2483/16

SITE ADDRESS: Land adjacent to Ashton House
High Street
Ongar
Essex
CM5 9AA

PARISH: Ongar

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of 4 no. residential units comprising 4 no. 1 bed flats with 
associated parking and landscaping.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587833

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: P01,P02 Rev B, Po3 Rev C, P04 Rev C, P05 Rev B, P06 
Rev B, P07 Rev B, P08 RevC, P09 Rev B, P10 Rev C, P11 Rev C and P12

3 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

4 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587833


Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

5 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

6 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

7 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition. 

8 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.



9 No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation 
of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority.

10 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

11 No development shall have taken place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For 
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself. 

12 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

13 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

14 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed at the site.  
The installed cleaning facilities shall be used to clean vehicles wheels immediately 
before leaving the site.



15 Windows in the west facing side elevation of the building hereby approved shall be 
non opening and finished in obscure glazing, and shall thereafter be retained in that 
form.





1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee 
East

Date: 13 December 2016 

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 
High Street, Epping

Time: 7.30  - 9.35 pm

Members 
Present:

S Jones (Chairman), A Grigg, R Morgan, J Philip, D Stallan, B Surtees, 
G Waller, C Whitbread, H Whitbread and J M Whitehouse

Other 
Councillors:

Apologies: P Keska, N Avey, N Bedford, A Boyce, H Brady, W Breare-Hall, M McEwen, 
B Rolfe and J H Whitehouse

Officers 
Present:

J Shingler (Principal Planning Officer), A Hendry (Senior Democratic Services 
Officer) and R Perrin (Democratic Services Officer)

59. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

60. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings.

61. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN 

In the absence of the Sub-Committee’s Vice-chairman the Sub-Committee agreed to 
the appointment of Councillor Philips as the Vice-Chairman for the duration of the 
meeting.

62. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2016 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

63. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East 13 December 2016

2

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Stallan, 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of two 
of the objectors being customers of his. The Councillors had determined that his 
interest was not prejudicial and that he would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/3227/16 – Woodside Commercial Site, Woodside, North Weald.

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Stallan 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of 
having been the Chair of the Council House Building Committee and the Housing 
Portfolio Holder and that the objector was known to him. The Councillor had 
determined that his interest was prejudicial and would leave the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/2368/16 – Land and Garages adj. 25 Colvers, Matching Green.

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor B Surtees 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of 
his son having used their facilities. The Councillor had determined that his interest 
was not prejudicial and that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/2357/16 – Zinc Arts, High Street, Ongar

(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor C Whitbread 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of 
knowing some of the objectors. The Councillor had determined that his interest was 
not prejudicial and that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon:

 EPF/2357/16 – Zinc Arts, High Street, Ongar.

(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor C Whitbread 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of 
being the Leader of the Council. The Councillor had determined that his interest was 
not prejudicial and that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
applications and voting thereon:

 EPF/2368/16 – Land and garages adj. 25 Colvers, Matching Green

(f) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor C Whitbread 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda. The Councillor 
had determined that his interest was prejudicial and that he would leave the meeting 
for the consideration of the applications and voting thereon:

 EPF/2550/16 – 17 Hemnall Street, Epping

(g) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor H Whitbread 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of 
being a member of Epping Town Council. The Councillor had determined that her 
interest was not prejudicial and she would remain in the meeting for the consideration 
of the applications and voting thereon:



Area Planning Sub-Committee East 13 December 2016

3

 EPF/2550/16 – 17 Hemnall Street, Epping

(h) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors G Waller and 
J Philip declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda, by 
virtue of being members of the Council House Building Cabinet Committee. The 
Councillors had determined that their interests were not prejudicial and that they 
would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon:

 EPF/2368/16 – Land and garages adj. 25 Colvers, Matching Green

(i) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor J Philip 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of 
knowing the objector. The Councillor had determined that his interest was not 
prejudicial and that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon:

 EPF/2427/16 – 39 Dukes Avenue, Theydon Bois

(j) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor S Jones 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of 
knowing the architect. The Councillor had determined that her interest was not 
prejudicial and that she would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon:

 EPF/2427/16 – 39 Dukes Avenue, Theydon Bois;
 EPF/2550/16 – 17 Hemnall Street, Epping

64. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

65. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 

RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 7 be determined as set out in 
the schedule attached to these minutes.

66. PROBITY IN PLANNING - APRIL 2016 TO SEPTEMBER 2016 

The Sub-Committee received a report regarding Probity in Planning – Appeal 
Decisions 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2016.

The report advised the decision making committees of the results of all successful 
allowed appeals, particulary those refused by committee to officer recommendation. 
The purpose was to inform Members of the consequences of their decisions in this 
respect and, in cases where the refusal was found unsupportable on planning 
grounds, an award of costs could be made against the Council.

Since 2011/12 there were two local indicators, one measured all planning application 
type appeals as a result of committee reversals of officer recommendations (GOV08) 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East 13 December 2016

4

and the other measured the performance of officer recommendations and delegated 
decisions (GOV07).

Over the six month period between 1 March 2016 and 30 September 2016, the 
Council received 49 decisions on appeals (48 of which were planning related 
appeals, the other 1 was enforcement related).

GOV07 and 08 measured planning application decisions and out of a total of 48, 18 
were allowed (37.5%). Broken down further, GOV07 performance was 8 out of 32 
allowed (25%) and GOV08 performance was 10 out of 16 (62.5%).

For the Area Plans East Sub-Committee, four appeals were allowed against 
decisions made and four were dismissed.

Councillor Philip noted that this was a acceptable 50/50 result and Councillor Surtees 
commented that it was not an inappropriate way to proceed.

RESOLVED:

That the Probity in Planning report covering the period April 2016 to 
September 2016 be noted.

CHAIRMAN



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/3227/15

SITE ADDRESS: Woodside Commercial Site 
Woodside 
North Weald
Essex
CM16 6LJ

PARISH: North Weald Bassett

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Outline Planning Application comprising demolition of Units 1, 1a, 
7, 8, 9a, 9b, 13 & disused bunker and erection of 5 new units for 
B1/B8 uses.  Infill buildings B1/B8 Use.  (Access, appearance, 
layout & scale to be determined, landscaping reserved)

DECISION: Deferred 

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=581440

This application was deferred in order for a members site visit to be carried out.
123

 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2235/16
Site Name: Ashlings Farm House, Ashlings 

Farm Lane, High Ongar, CM4 0JU

Scale of Plot: 1/2500

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=581440


Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/2235/16

SITE ADDRESS: Ashlings Farm House
Ashlings Farm Lane
High Ongar
Ingatestone
Essex
CM4 0JU

PARISH: High Ongar

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Application for variation of condition 18 on planning application 
EPF/2066/15 (Demolition of existing residential use buildings on 
site and erection of 3 no. new dwellings with associated new 
landscaping)

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586720

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: FLV_: 100A, 101, 300A, 301A, 310 Rev B and 311 Rev B, 
FLV_350

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

5 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586720


Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Classes A and E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

7 The hard and soft landscaping scheme as agreed in writing by EPF/2731/16 of the 
original consent (EPF/2066/15) shall be carried out in accordance with these 
approved details. 

8 The Tree protection scheme as agreed in writing by EPF/2731/16 of the original 
consent (EPF/2066/15) shall be carried out in accordance with these approved 
details. 

9 The hard and soft landscaping scheme as agreed in writing by EPF/2275/16 of the 
original consent (EPF/2066/15) shall be carried out in accordance with these 
approved details. 

10 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

11 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 



must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

12 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

13 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

14 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

15 The public’s rights and ease of passage over public bridleway no.6 High Ongar shall 
be maintained free and unobstructed at all times.

16 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial 
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance 
with the management and maintenance plan.

17 The habitat scheme as agreed in writing by EPF/2731/16 of the original consent 
(EPF/2066/15) shall be carried out in accordance with these approved details. 

18 The buildings shown to be removed on drawing FLV_350 shall be demolished and 
removed from the site within three months of the first occupation of any of the new 
dwellings on plots 1, 2 or 3. 



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/2357/16

SITE ADDRESS: Zinc Arts
High Street
Ongar
Essex
CM5 0AD

PARISH: Ongar

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Change of use of 'overnight stay' block to non-self contained studio 
flats with use of facilities shared with community arts centre.

DECISION: Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587393

This application was deferred in order for a members site visit to be carried out and for the 
provision of more information regarding financial marketing of the accommodation for its current 
use and also in regard to which use class the proposal falls into.

123

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587393


Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/2368/16

SITE ADDRESS: Land and garages adjacent 25 Colvers
Matching Green
Essex
CM17 0PX

PARISH: Matching

WARD: Moreton and Fyfield

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

2 affordable homes with 10 parking spaces

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587473

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed development results in the loss of 18 garages and the introduction of 
2 new dwellings with the provision of only 10 new parking spaces, and will 
significantly exacerbate  the level of parking stress in an area where there is already 
excessive on street parking.  As such the development is likely to be detrimental to 
highway safety and the character and amenity of the area contrary to policies ST4, 
ST6 and CP2 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

123

The presenting officer explained that a revised petition had been received, withdrawing the earlier 
petition and signed by 34 local residents which specifically does not support the provision of any 
additional houses and would welcome proposals to address parking and road problems.

Way Forward

The applicants were advised to seek ways of improving off street parking provision in the locality.
 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2427/16
Site Name: 39 Dukes Avenue, Theydon Bois, 

CM16 7HG

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587473


Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/2427/16

SITE ADDRESS: 39 Dukes Avenue
Theydon Bois
Essex
CM16 7HG

PARISH: Theydon Bois

WARD: Theydon Bois

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

New dwelling adjoined to existing detached dwelling and extension 
to existing dwelling to form two four bedroom semi detached 
dwellings (revised scheme).

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 39DATB/16/P/001 Rev A, 39DATB/16/P/002 Rev A 
(Received 21/11/2016), 39DATB/16/P/003 Rev A and 39DATB/16/P/004 Rev A

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 



as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Class A, B and E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Class B of Part 2 of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

Members requested that a condition be added to remove the right to provide new vehicular 
accesses to the front of the properties; however this is already covered by condition 6 which 
removes that right.



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/2484/16

SITE ADDRESS: Spencers Farm
Oak Hill Road
Stapleford Abbotts
Romford
Essex
RM4 1JH

PARISH: Stapleford Abbotts

WARD: Passingford

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing buildings, erection of four detached houses 
with integral garages, provision of passing bays, boundary 
treatment and hard and soft landscaping.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587834

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: Site Location Plan, 1911.2, 1911.3A, 1911.3B, 1911.4, 
1911.5 (Plots 1 & 3), 1911.5 (Plots 2 & 4) 1911.6, 1911.8 and 1911.1755calc 

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed first floor 
window openings in the flank elevations shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass 
and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument 
revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage(s) hereby approved shall be retained 
so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary 
storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be 
converted into a room or used for any other purpose.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587834


6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

7 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until details of the retained landscaping (trees / hedges) and their methods of 
protection (in accordance with BS5837:2012 -Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction Recommendations) have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details unless the Local Planning Authority gives its 
written consent to any variation.

8 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

9 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

10 Prior to the first occupation of the development the passing bays, as shown on 
drawing no.1911.3A, shall be fully implemented and shall be retained in perpetuity 
for their intended purpose.

11 Prior to the first occupation of the development the vehicle parking and turning areas 
as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, hard surfaced, sealed and 
marked out. The parking and turning areas shall be retained in perpetuity for their 
intended purpose.



12 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

13 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

14 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]



15 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

16 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

17 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion 
of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the 
management and maintenance plan.

18 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

19 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Class A, B and E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

20 No demolition shall take place between 1st March and 31st August (inclusive), 
unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed check of vegetation 
for active bird nests immediately before demolition and provided written confirmation 
that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to 
protect nesting birds on the site.  Any such written confirmation shall be submitted to 
and agreed by the local planning authority prior to commencement of any 
demolition.

21 An external lighting plan shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to first occupation.  Any external lighting shall be installed in 
accordance with such agreed details.  



22 A plan showing roadside refuse collection location within the site, with details of 
screening shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to first occupation.  The area of refuse collection shall be marked out in 
accordance with such agreed details and retained as an area for the storage of 
refuse and for no other purpose.  
 

123

 



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/2550/16

SITE ADDRESS: 17 Hemnall Street
Epping
Essex
CM16 4LS

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Hemnall

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Replacement of the existing bungalow with a new three storey 
block of five apartments. This would consist of 2 no. one-bed flats 
and 3 no. two-bed flats. The development would be served by 
three off-street parking spaces to the front and communal amenity 
space to the rear.

DECISION: Referred to District Development Management Committee

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588015

Members voted on the recommendation to Grant planning Permission and this was lost 2 votes to 
3.
Members then considered possible reasons for refusal and it was proposed and seconded that the 
application be refused due to the scale and massing of the development and its adverse impact on 
the amenity of surrounding neighbours, and due to the excessive shortfall in proposed parking 
provision.
A vote was then taken on this and the result was 3 votes to 3.
4 members of the Committee then stood to exercise their right to refer the application to District 
Development Management Committee

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588015


AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘EAST’
18 January 2017

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES
ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 

RECOMMENDATION
PAGE

1 EPF/3227/15 Woodside Commercial Site 
Woodside 
North Weald
Essex
CM16 6LJ

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

52

2 EPF/2357/16 Zinc Arts
High Street
Ongar
Essex
CM5 0AD

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

66

3 EPF/2436/16 46 St Johns Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 5DP

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

74

4 EPF/2532/16 2 Bell Farm Cottages
High Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 4DF

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

80

5 EPF/2709/16 Norton Field Farm
Norton Lane
High Ongar
Ongar
Essex
CM4 0LN

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

84

6 EPF/2716/16 21 Beamish Close
North Weald
Essex
CM16 6JN

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

90

7 EPF/2782/16 The Malt Barn
Matching Green
Matching
Harlow
Essex
CM17 0QE

Refuse Permission

(Householder)

94

8 EPF/2843/16 The Oaks
Bassetts Lane
Willingale
Essex
CM5 0GJ

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

102

9 EPF/2882/16 Land adjacent to Magnolia 
House
Abridge Road
Theydon Bois
Epping
Essex
CM16 7NR

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

110



123

 

91.7m

78.6m

83.5m

88.1m

Marshalls

Club

7
6

13

8 to 9

5

Sta
El Sub

2 to 3

10

14

Emmaus

Beecroft

Woodside House

46

19

Holly Cottage

Marshalls Barn

Woodlands

4

1

Forest
Cottage

Chippendale Cottages

Chelmwood

Cottage
Cottage
Chestnut

The Old Farm

Honeysuckle

W
O

O
DSIDE

Moat

Scrap Yard

Epping Forest

Lower Forest

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

The

Tr
ac

k

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Ponds

Pond

Woodside Industrial Estate

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 1

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/3227/15
Site Name: Woodside Commercial Site, 

Woodside, North Weald, CM16 6LJ

Scale of Plot: 1/2500



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/3227/15

SITE ADDRESS: Woodside Commercial Site 
Woodside 
North Weald
Essex
CM16 6LJ

PARISH: North Weald Bassett

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common

APPLICANT: G T Commercial Holdings Ltd

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Outline Planning Application comprising demolition of Units 1, 1a, 
7, 8, 9a, 9b, 13 & disused bunker and erection of 5 new units for 
B1/B8 uses.  Infill buildings B1/B8 Use.  (Access, appearance, 
layout & scale to be determined, landscaping reserved)

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=581440

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission or two years from the approval of the 
last of the reserved matters as defined in condition 2 below, whichever is the later.

2 a)  Details of the reserved matters set out below ("the reserved matters") shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval within three years from the 
date of this permission:
(i) landscaping.
b)  The reserved matters shall be carried out as approved.
c)  Approval of all reserved matters shall be obtained from the Local Planning 
Authority in writing before any development is commenced.

3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 6877 PPP1, 6877 PPP1 Rev: C, 6877 PEP1, 6877 PA Rev: 
A, 6877 PB, 6877 PC Rev: A, 6877 PD, 6877 PE, 915382

4 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=581440


5 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

6 Notwithstanding the submitted information, no development, including works of 
demolition or site clearance, shall take place until a suitable Tree Protection Plan 
Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring schedule in accordance with 
BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction - 
recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and 
approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in accordance with 
the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation.

7 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion 
of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the 
management and maintenance plan.

8 Any tree or vegetation clearance shall be carried out outside the bird breeding 
season (late February to late August) or an ecologist must undertake a bird breeding 
survey prior to demolition or clearance. Work may start once the ecologist has 
submitted a report to the Local Planning Authority confirming that no active nests will 
be affected by the works.

9 The ponds within 250m of the WWII bunker in the southeast corner of the site shall 
be surveyed for Great crested newts the season before the commencement of the 
development (mid March to mid June) and a report shall be submitted to and agreed 
in writing to the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any works. If 
it is shown that Great crested newts are present then a suitable mitigation strategy 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the commencement of works.

10 Prior to the commencement of the development a lighting scheme shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority outlining the 
plan for the lighting during and after construction  and the development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the agreed details.

11 Prior to the commencement of the development a plan for ecological enhancements 
regarding bird boxes, bat boxes, and any native planting shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the agreed details.



12 Any vegetation removed from the site shall be done so in stages under ecological 
supervision to decrease the favourability of the habitat for reptiles.

13 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

14 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

15 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 



follows]

16 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

17 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

18 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3) and since it is for a type of 
development that cannot be determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the 
planning merits of the proposal to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part 
Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

This application was deferred from the last Plans East Sub Committee to enable Members to carry 
out a site visit.  The original report is reproduced below.

Description of Site: 

Woodside Commercial Site is an established industrial estate located on the eastern side of 
Woodside just outside the village of Thornwood. The site contains a number of commercial units 
and several businesses and is served by two access points (one as an entrance and one as an 
exit).

There are a number of preserved trees on the site, predominantly around the site boundary, with 
open farmland to the north and east. To the south of the site are residential properties that are part 
of a small linear settlement along Woodside and opposite to the site to the west is Epping Forest.

The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt and an EFDC flood risk assessment zone.



Description of Proposal: 

Outline planning consent is being sought with access, appearance, layout and scale to be 
determined. Therefore the only matter reserved for later assessment is landscaping. 
Notwithstanding this information and amendments have been sought with regards to tree 
protection due to the presence and potential impact on protected trees.

The proposed development would involve the demolition of units 7 and 13 and the erection of 5 
new B1/B8 buildings indicated on the submitted plans as Buildings A, B, C, D and E.

 Building A would be located along the norther section of the site and would measure a 
maximum width of 92.4m. This would be staggered (to follow the line of the boundary and 
ensure the adjacent protected trees are preserved) and would contain 15 two storey units. 
This building would have a stepped pitched roof (due to the topography of the land) to ridge 
heights of a maximum of 8.2m.

 Building B would be located on the eastern side of the site and would infill between/in front 
of existing (retained) buildings. This would measure a maximum width of 54m and would 
contain 9 two storey units. The building would have a triple ridged roof measuring 8.4m in 
the central section dropping to 8m on either side.

 Building C would be located in the south eastern corner of the site and would replace an 
existing bunker. It would measure 10.25m in width and would contain a single two storey 
unit with a pitched roof to a ridge height of 7.8m.

 Building D would be located within the centre of the site and would measure a maximum of 
47m in width. This would be single storey with multiple ridge heights reaching 5m in height 
and would contain 7 units.

 Building E would be located at the south western corner of the site and would measure 
28.6m x 14.8m. It would contain 4 two storey units and would have a pitched roof to a ridge 
height of 7.8m.

The level of car parking on the site would increase from 66 spaces to 129 spaces. The access to 
the site and internal road network would be unaltered from the existing situation.

Relevant History: 

EPR/0042/51 - Use of existing building as furniture store – approved/conditions 25/05/51
EPR/0153/51 - Use existing building for storage – approved/conditions 26/09/51
EPR/0008/52 - Use of buildings for storage – approved/conditions 23/02/52
EPR/0071/52 - Use existing buildings for storage – approved/conditions 13/06/52
EPR/0029/54 - Use existing premises for engineering – refused 03/04/54
EPO/0264/69 - Change of use to storage – approved/conditions 10/06/69
EPF/0392/74 - Use of part of building for light industrial purposes (assembling of condensing units 
for commercial refrigerators) – refused 04/09/74
EPF/0738/75 - Proposed establishment of permanent storage use – approved/conditions 01/02/77
EPF/1400/75 - Details of alterations to industrial premises – refused 24/05/76
EPF/0949/79 - Formation of parking area for lorry trailers – refused 10/09/79
EPF/0806/81 - Change of use from Builders Yard (Class 10) to manufacture and storage of Ice 
Cream (Class 3). Unit 5 – refused 06/07/81
EPF/1016/83 - Replacement storage building – approved/conditions 26/09/83
EPF/0161/86 - Erection of commercial storage building and ancillary offices. Unit 2 – refused 
28/04/86 (dismissed on appeal 11/03/87)
EPF/1004/86 - Revised plans for replacement storage building with ancillary offices. Unit 2 – 
refused 15/09/86
EPF/0718/87 - Replacement storage building with ancillary offices – approved/conditions 21/09/87



EPF/1204/88 - Outline Application for 17 detached houses – refused 26/08/88 (dismissed on 
appeal lodged 26/6/89)
EPF/0242/90 - Revised application for a replacement storage building with ancillary offices. Unit 2 
– approved/conditions 04/06/90
EPF/0508/97 - Single storey extension to office building. Unit 1 – approved/conditions 14/07/97
EPF/0235/98 - Demolition of existing commercial buildings and lean to and replacement with 
single detached commercial building. Unit 2 – refused 21/04/98
EPF/0926/98 - Demolition of existing buildings and erection of single replacement office and store 
building. Unit 2 – refused 05/10/98
EPF/0016/99 - Demolition of detached building and erection of new pitched roof single storey 
building for use as workshop and store. Unit 2 – approved/conditions 16/04/99
EPF/1137/00 - Change of use of industrial/storage unit to childrens day nursery – 
approved/conditions 15/11/00
EPF/0432/02 - Extension to unit No. 8 and provision of additional unit between unit Nos. 7 and 8 
for Class B1/B2/B8 use – refused 31/05/02
EPF/1947/02 - Extension to unit No.8 and additional unit between unit Nos.7 & 8 for B2 use – 
refused 22/11/02
EPF/0975/03 - Proposed change of use and replacement of pitched roof with flat roof to covered 
area and small extension to accommodate day nursery. Units 15/15A – approved/conditions 
25/07/03
EPF/0169/04 - Erection of first floor extension on existing flat roof storage area. Formation of car 
park to side of property. Unit 1 – approved/conditions 28/05/04
EPF/0954/05 - Retrospective application for security fencing to vehicle compound – 
approved/conditions 17/08/05
CLD/EPF/1318/05 - Certificate of lawfulness for use of units 15A & 15B for lorry van, and car 
parking and storage – lawful 25/10/05
EPF/1805/06 - Security fencing over 2 metres high for security of parking cars, vans and lorries 
and storage container with temporary roof – refused 23/08/07 (allowed on appeal 04/04/08)
EPF/0170/13 - Demolition of existing store and erection of office building. Unit 9 – 
approved/conditions 22/03/13

Policies Applied:

CP1 – Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
CP3 – New Development
CP6 – Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns
CP8 – Sustainable Economic Development
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt
GB7A – Conspicuous Development 
RP4 – Contaminated Land 
U2B – Flood Risk Assessment Zones
DBE1 – New Buildings
DBE2 – Impact of Buildings on Neighbouring Property
DBE4 – Design and Location of New Buildings within Green Belt
DBE9 – Amenity
NC4 – Protection of Established Habitat
LL10 – Retention of Trees
LL11 – Landscaping Schemes
ST1 – Location of Development
ST2 – Accessibility of Development
ST4 – Road Safety
ST6 – Vehicle Parking



The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

The site is identified in the Epping Forest District Draft Local Plan Consultation October 2016, as 
site ELR-0093 – an employment site identified for intensification. At the current time only limited 
material weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan, however the Draft Plan and evidence base 
should be considered as a material consideration in planning decisions. 

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received:

55 neighbouring properties were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed.

PARISH COUNCIL – The Council objects to this application due to the following:
 There is a general concern as to how many units are being demolished and exactly where 

they are situated – it is not clear on the plan.
 Concern at the number of units to be created and also the number of parking spaces.
 It looks as if some of the parking spaces are being created in front of where units have 

roller shutters – how is access going to be carried out to those units.
 There are currently a lot of problems with parking in Thornwood Common and this increase 

in units would exacerbate the parking and could mean cars parking on the side roads. This 
would have a detrimental effect to the safety of residents in Thornwood Common.

 Trees have already been removed from the site without permission.
 The height of some of the proposed buildings – ie one and a half storeys and two storeys – 

will be overbearing and out of keeping with what is already there.
 This represents an overdevelopment of the site.
 Concern at open air storage.
 The highways report is very alarming, and the Parish Council Members feel that this was 

undertaken simply as a ‘desk top exercise’. Members feel that Highways should visit the 
site and see their concerns first hand, and also meet with members of the Parish Council 
and a small number of local residents.

CPRE – Comment that there is a need for suitable commercial sites within the district where 
various businesses can operate in pleasant surroundings to provide local employment 
opportunities and make a valuable contribution to the economic viability of the area. However hope 
that high environmental standards are met, the impact on the Green Belt is fully considered as is 
the impact on Epping Forest. Also comment on drainage, sustainable transport options, highway 
hazards from deer, air pollution and fast broadband connection.

THORNWOOD ACTION – Object to the increased noise, increased road traffic and feel that traffic 
calming measures should be installed in Woodside.

BEECROFT HOUSE, WOODSIDE – Object as they previously successfully appealed to the 
Traffic Commissioner against a GVOL Variation application to increase the number of permitted 
vehicles. The site already has full capacity of commercial traffic and the local vehicular concerns 
are now worse.

6 BRICKFIELD COTTAGES, HIGH ROAD – Object as the ECC Highways comments raise no 
objection on the basis that there would be no increase in use, however there would be 3,219m2 
net additional floorspace. This will inevitably result in increased traffic and parking requirements. 
Also the proposal would impact on biodiversity of the adjacent SSSI site.

37 UPLAND ROAD – Object due to increase traffic concerns.



13 WOODSIDE – Object as Woodside is already a rat-run and more traffic would be unbearable.

UNIT 4C, WOODSIDE ESTATE – Object to the number of proposed units, the overdevelopment 
of the site, the noise and disturbance, the lack of parking provision, highway safety concerns and 
the environmental impact this would have.

3 CHIPPENDALE COTTAGES – Object due to the removal of existing trees, the impact the 
development would have on surrounding residents, the impact on biodiversity, and the increase in 
traffic.

2 THE POULTONS, WOODSIDE – Object due to increased traffic and the impact on highway 
safety.

41 DUCK LANE – Object as this would be overdevelopment of the site, there are already traffic 
problems on Woodside, there should be noise restrictions and opening hour restrictions imposed, 
this may impact on highway safety and the free flow of traffic, and feel that no chemicals should be 
allowed on the site.

18 FOREST GROVE – Object due to increased traffic and as this would impact on the existing 
parking problems in the area.

CHELMWOOD, WOODSIDE – Object due to an increase in traffic, impact on the Green belt, and 
due to the presence of protected trees.

CEDAR COTTAGE, WOODSIDE – Object as two storey units would be out of character with the 
site, this would result in more traffic, and no adequate provision has been made for extra parking 
on site.

THE OLD FARM, WOODSIDE – Object due to the impact on the Green Belt, the size of the 
building would increase their visual impact, as this would result in increased traffic, and due to 
parking concerns.

44 DUCK LANE – Object as this would impact on highway safety.

42 DUCK LANE – Object as this will lead to an increase in traffic, is in the middle of the forest and 
would result in increased pollution and environmental damage, and due to the impact on trees.

29 DUCK LANE – Object as this would lead to an increase in traffic.

BEE HOUSE, WOODSIDE – Object as parking and deliveries will become even more congested 
and will lead to overflow onto the road.

NO ADDRESS GIVEN – Object to the increase in traffic.

UNIT 14J, WOODSIDE ESTATE – Support the application as this will provide much needed 
business units on a well maintained small industrial estate.

10 WOODSIDE CAMP (CHILDRENS DAY NURSERY) – Support the application as it will 
enhance the site and provide a smarter landscape.

55 FENTON GRANGE – Support the application as it creates more jobs and opportunities in the 
community.

UNIT 4G, WOODISDE ESTATE – Support as this is a much needed renovation.



UNIT 14B, WOODSIDE – Support as this will benefit the site and all that work around this area.

UNIT 6C, WOODSIDE ESTATE – Support as this is a well-run site and occupants have been kept 
up to date throughout the process.

UNIT 6B, WOODSIDE ESTATE – Support and welcome additional units, however would like to 
ensure that there is enough parking provided on site.

UNIT 4F, WOODSIDE ESTATE – Support as this will create more jobs and encourage small 
businesses to developed within the local area.

UNIT 4A, WOODSIDE ESTATE – Support as this will improve the appearance and use of the 
site.

UNIT 4, WOODSIDE ESTATE – Support as this would improve and establish the site.

UNIT 14C, 14D AND 14E, WOODSIDE ESTATE – No objection as this will enhance the area and 
the local economy.

THE BEEHIVE, WEST STREET, GRAYS – Support the application as it would enable them to 
locate a site within Epping Forest which they have been seeking for some time. There is currently 
nothing else suitable available in or around this location regardless of cost.

UNIT 16, WOODSIDE ESTATE – Support the application as there is a lack of available 
commercial space in and around Epping and this would provide greater availability and affordable 
rentals for new and growing businesses. 

UNIT 8, WOODSIDE ESTATE – Support as this will improve the existing site and will provide 
additional employment opportunities.

8 WOODSIDE BUSINESS PARK – Support as the existing premises on the site are not fit for 
purposes and the proposed development will benefit the site, the local economy, community and 
employment prospects.

UNIT 14A, WOODSIDE ESTATE – Support as this will provide more job opportunities for local 
people.

UNIT 5, WOODSIDE ESTATE – Support as this will be beneficial and improve employment in the 
area.

Main Issues and Considerations: 

Whilst the submitted application is for outline planning consent all matters except landscaping 
(with the exception of tree protection) are to be determined. As such everything except the 
provision of new landscaping is currently under consideration.

The proposed development would create additional employment units within a long established 
industrial estate and therefore would create additional employment opportunities and would be 
economically and socially sustainable. Furthermore several current occupants of the site, along 
with interest business representatives, have expressed support for the proposal as it would 
provide additional commercial accommodation to meet the identified needs within the District. 
These factors weigh in favour of the development and should be given significant weight in the 
application.



It should also be noted that the site is identified in the Draft Local Plan Consultation as site ELR-
0093 – an employment site identified for intensification. At the current time only limited material 
weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan, however the Draft Plan and evidence base should 
be considered as a material consideration in planning decisions. 

The key considerations in this application are the impact on the Green Belt, highways safety and 
parking considerations, impact on surrounding residents, the design and visual impact of the 
proposal, the impact on protected trees, and the impact on biodiversity.

Principle of development in the Green Belt:

The application site is a long established commercial site that has been in use for several decades. 
As can be seen in the planning history various commercial uses and developments have been 
approved since as early as 1951. As such this site would clearly constitute previously developed 
land as defined within Annex 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

The National Planning Policy Framework identifies that the erection of buildings within the Green 
Belt constitutes inappropriate development with a number of exceptions, including:

 limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed sites 
(brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), 
which would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose 
of including land within it than the existing development.

The key consideration in this exception to inappropriate development is whether the proposal 
constitutes a ‘limited infilling’ or a ‘partial or complete redevelopment’ of the site. Whilst the 
proposal would involve some demolition/replacement of existing buildings the proposed new units 
would be situated within the confines of the existing industrial estate and surrounded by existing 
(retained) buildings. As such it is considered that the proposed development would constitute ‘infill’.

Since it is almost impossible to provide infill without having a greater impact on the openness of the 
Green Belt it is not considered that the last sentence of this exception caveats ‘limited extensions’. 
Nonetheless the proposed buildings would be contained within the confines of the existing, historic 
industrial site and would be viewed within the context of the existing, retained buildings. Therefore 
whilst the proposal would result in increased built form on the site this would have a relatively 
minor physical impact on openness and as such it is considered that the proposal would not 
constitute inappropriate development within the Green Belt. 

Whilst only limited weight can be given to the Draft Local Plan and no spatial options have yet 
been identified for employment sites within this document the application site is identified within the 
Draft Local Plan as an ‘employment site identified for intensification’. This should be given some, 
albeit limited, weight in favour of the proposal.

Highway safety/parking:

One of the key concerns of surrounding neighbours is regarding highway safety and traffic 
impacts. The application has been assessed by Essex County Council Highways who have 
responded stating that “from a highway and transportation perspective the Highway Authority has 
no comments to make on this proposal as it is not contrary to the Highway Authority’s 
Development Management Policies, adopted as County Council Supplementary Guidance in 
February 2011, and policies ST4 & ST6 of the Local Plan”.

Concern has been raised by neighbours since the informative on this states “the site benefits from 
existing accesses which provide good visibility and geometry onto Woodside and as the proposal 
is only to modernise the site and not increasing the amount of use, there will be little if any 



highway impact” (my emphasis). However as is evident in the proposed submission there will be 
some 3,219m2 of additional commercial space added to the site. Following these comments a 
discussion was held with the Highways Officer highlighting that there would be additional 
commercial units provided on site. Nonetheless, given the existing one way system and quality of 
the existing access points to the site it is still considered that the proposal would not raise any 
objections in terms of highway safety or the free flow of traffic on Woodside.

The Essex County Council Vehicle Parking Standards recommends a maximum of 1 space per 
30m2 for B1 use buildings and 1 space per 150m2 for B8 use buildings. Since the proposal would 
result in an undefined net increase of 3219m2 the maximum parking provision for the site would 
range from between 22 to 108 off-street spaces. It is proposed to provide an additional 63 spaces, 
which raise the existing 66 parking spaces that currently serve the 3420m2 of existing B1/B8 use 
on the site to 129 spaces.

As can be seen above the current off-street parking provision on the site is 1 space for every 
51.8m2 of B1/B8 use and the proposed development would largely retain this by providing 1 space 
for every 51.5m2 of B1/B8 use. Since this figure lies between the two stated recommendations, 
both of which are maximum standards, it is considered that the level of off-street parking provision 
proposed is acceptable in this instance.

Neighbouring Amenity:

The only immediately adjacent neighbouring residents to the site are Honeysuckle Cottage and 
Woodlands, with Chestnut Cottage being on the adjacent side of Woodside. The closest new 
building to these properties would be Building E, which would replace an existing part single 
storey/part two storey structure and would measure a maximum height of 7.8m with a shallow 
pitched roof pitching away from the adjacent neighbours.

This building would be located a minimum of 3.6m from the shared boundary with Honeysuckle 
Cottage and over 28m from the closest point of the neighbouring dwellinghouse. Given these 
distances and the presence of the existing preserved boundary trees it is not considered that this 
building would cause any significant adverse impact on the amenities of the neighbours.

All other proposed new buildings would be located within the existing industrial estate well away 
from any surrounding neighbours. Whilst the provision of additional units would result in an 
increase in vehicle movements and activity on the site, given the long established and extensive 
existing use on the site it is not considered that this increase would create any excessive 
additional harm as a result of noise or general disturbance.

Design:

The proposed new buildings would range in height and be a maximum of two storeys with shallow 
pitched roofs. They would be utilitarian and industrial in design similar to the existing buildings 
already on the site. Whilst some of the proposed building would be slightly higher than the existing 
structures on the site the new buildings would be viewed within the context of the established 
industrial estate and in large parts would be well screened by existing trees and vegetation. 
Therefore the overall visual appearance of the development is considered to be acceptable.

Landscaping:

The proposal has been revised throughout the life of the application as a result of discussions with 
the Councils Tree & Landscape Officer. This has involved buildings being reduced in size in order 
to ensure adequate separation from preserved trees and the reduction and reconfiguration of the 
works to the south eastern corner to provide a single unit (instead of two as originally proposed) 
with no parking or roadways situated directly under the preserved trees in this part of the site. 



Subject to a condition regarding tree protection, which would include the requirement to design 
any car parking under trees in a way to minimise impact to rooting areas, it is concluded that the 
proposal would be achievable without detrimental harm to or loss of existing preserved trees.

It has been highlighted by neighbours, and is known to the council, that some trees have been 
taken down on site recently, however none of the removed trees were subject to tree preservation 
orders and therefore these works were undertaken lawfully. Nonetheless, given the proposed 
development and additional built form that would result on the site it would be necessary to re-
establish specific tree planting throughout the site following the loss of numerous good specimens 
in recent months and to assist in softening and screening the proposed development. However 
since landscaping is the only matter reserved in this outline application this matter is not under 
consideration in this application and would subsequently be dealt with at Reserved Matters stage.

Ecology:

The application is accompanied by an Ecological Survey that has been assessed by the Councils 
ecological officer. Subject to conditions there are no objections in respect of ecology.

Other considerations:

Land Drainage:

The development is of a size where it is necessary to avoid generating additional runoff and where 
the opportunity should be taken to improve existing surface water runoff. Therefore a flood risk 
assessment is required, which can be dealt with by way of a condition. The applicant is proposing 
to dispose of surface water by main sewer however the Councils records do not indicate a surface 
water sewer at this location. Therefore further details are required regarding surface water 
drainage, which can be dealt with by condition.

Contaminated Land:

Due to its former use as a military site and current use as an industrial estate there is the potential 
for contaminants to be present on site and therefore the contaminated land conditions are 
necessary.

Conclusion:

In light of the above it is considered that the proposed development would constitute the ‘limited 
infill of a previously developed site’ and would not have a greater impact on the openness of the 
Green Belt. Therefore the proposal would not constitute inappropriate development within the 
Green Belt. In addition the development would provide additional purpose built commercial units 
within an existing, well established industrial estate, which would assist the Council in providing 
adequate employment sites to meet an identified need.

The key concerns from neighbouring residents are regarding highway safety and parking 
provision, however no objection has been received from Essex County Council regarding access 
and sufficient off-street parking provision would be made in line with the current provision on site. 
The revised plans adequately address any concerns regarding the impact on preserved trees and 
the proposed new units would not have a significantly adverse impact on the amenities of 
neighbouring residents or the character and appearance of the area.

Due to the above it is considered that the proposed development complies with the guidance 
contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and the relevant Local Plan policies and 
therefore the application is recommended for approval.



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer:   Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number:   01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk



123

 
62.5m

1412

18

24

19

31

26

2

3

98

7

13

4

Great Stony

Arts Centre
51

 to
 54

House

7

Highfield

1

Shutters

Theatre

Tolpuddle

1 
to

 9

El
Sta

1

57

36

Sub

25 to 36

6

3

18

17
1

2

24

30

1

LAWN

G
REAT

MAYFLOWER WAY

Great Stony Park

THE PAVILIONS

TCB

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 2

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2357/16
Site Name: Zinc Arts, High Street, Ongar, CM5 

0AD

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/2357/16

SITE ADDRESS: Zinc Arts
High Street
Ongar
Essex
CM5 0AD

PARISH: Ongar

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash

APPLICANT: Zinc Arts 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Change of use of 'overnight stay' block to non-self contained studio 
flats with use of facilities shared with community arts centre.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587393

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1720/1 - 4 inclusive, 5A, 6 and 7A

3 At least one of the residents communal rooms shown on the approved plans shall be 
available solely for residents use upon first occupation of the accommodation hereby 
permitted. The second communal room shall thereafter be provided, along with the 
external link canopy within 6 months of first occupation, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Communal facilities shall thereafter be 
retained in accordance with the approved details for the duration of the use.

4 Residents parking bays indicated on drawing 1720/7A shall be marked with resident 
parking signage prior to first occupation and shall thereafter be maintained as such 
for the duration of the sue.

This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than four  objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, 
Appendix 3)

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587393


This application was deferred from the last Plans east Sub Committee to enable members to carry 
out a site visit and for clarification about the Use Class of the development, and for additional 
financial information.

The original report is reproduced below and any further information will be reported verbally at 
committee.

Description of Site:

Zinc Arts Centre occupies the former Great Stony school buildings on the east side of the High 
Street. Buildings comprise a mix of single and two storey elements; the original building comprises 
a mix of community and arts uses including teaching/workshop rooms, nursery, café and 
reception. There have been significant extensions to the originally including a theatre, additional 
rooms for centre activities and two x two storey residential blocks to the south; a frontage block 
managed and let by East Thames Housing Association for supported living and the application 
block at the rear. A car park lies to the northern end of the site comprising around 50 spaces.

The site is located within a primarily residential section of the High Street. Great Stony Park, the 
residential community to the north and east, lies behind a gated access to the north. The site lies 
within the Great Stony School Conservation Area and within the Green Belt.  

Description of Proposal: 

The application relates to the rear of the two storey residential blocks which was built originally as 
an overnight accommodation block for people involved with activities at the centre. The 
accommodation is best described as being resembling modern budget en-suite hotel rooms 
comprising a bed, chair and desk and a number have wet room facilities in the bathrooms. A 
separate accessible bathroom is currently provided at ground floor and there are 25 rooms served 
off a central corridor.

Permission is sought for minor adaptations to be made to the building and to use it for more 
general housing. Each of the 25 rooms will be provided with a galley kitchenette. Residents 
facilities will include two lounges or activity rooms, one on the ground floor of the building replaces 
the current accessible bathroom and a  second in the rear of the main building accessed from the 
rear via a laundry room available to all residents – a canopy is shown linking the two elements. 
Main access to the building will be from the courtyard area via a side access around the frontage 
block.

Nine parking spaces within the main car park are identified as being allocated for residential 
occupiers.

It should be noted that the application has been amended to remove reference to the variation of a 
section 106 agreements that limits use of the buildings on the site to purposes connected with 
community arts or ancillary purposes. This was included in the application description (see 
consultation responses below) but has been removed both for procedural reasons – a section 106 
agreement cannot be amended as part of a planning application and requires a separate 
application for alteration – and for further review of whether amendment is in fact required. The 
applicants have advised that their preference is not to amend the agreement.

Relevant History:

The previous use of the site ceased in the 1990’s. The residential buildings in Great Stony park 
were separated from the wider site and converted to houses under application EPF/1561/97, the 
section 106 agreement referred to above was attached to this permission. 



Applications specifically relating to the arts centre use comprise:

EPF/1627/98 Change of use of land and buildings from school/playground to arts and education 
centre with car park, plus minor external alterations -  approved.

EPF/1859/08 The demolition of existing outbuildings and small area of single storey rear addition 
to main arts centre building and new extensions to provide fully wheelchair 
accessible additional teaching rooms, multi purpose studio, overnight stay 
accommodation, dining facilities, supported housing (9 flats), cycle and car parking 
spaces, gardens and new vehicular access from the High Street - approved.

Policies Applied:

CP1 Achieving sustainable development objectives
CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
GB2a Development in the Green Belt
GB8a Change of use or adaptation of buildings
GB16 Affordable housing
CF12 Retention of community facilities
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
ST6 Vehicle parking

NPPF The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national 
policy since March 2012.  Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant 
policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above 
policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.  

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Date of site visit: 04 November 2016
Number of neighbours consulted:  42
Site notice posted:  04 November 2016
Responses received:  29 objections have been received and one response supporting the 
proposals. Objections have been received from the following locations (Ongar addresses unless 
otherwise identified)::

Great Stoney Park – 3, 5, 9, 13, 18,20 and 55.
Great Lawn – 4, 15, 19, 23 and 34
High Street – Braeside, Woodbine Cottage, 75 and 1,2 and 5 Highfield Place
Bowers Drive – 30
Fyfield Road – 59
London Road – 135
Mayflower Way – 28 & 39
Roding View – 9 
Rodney Road – 2 
The Pavilions – 3
Victoria Road – 3

In addition, 7 Torrells Hall Cottages, Shellow Road Willingale and Queen Anne Cottage, 
Greensted Road, Greensted.

The letter of support is from occupier of 9 Fairbank Close, Ongar.
Objectors have raised the following issues:

- Objections to the variation of the s106 agreement – residents were concerned that this 



affected other properties bound by the legal agreement and would remove any control on 
the use of the land for general housing. Comment – as referred to above, the issue of the 
s106 agreement is no longer part of the application and is being addressed separately. The 
legal matters do not affect Members abilities to determine the planning merits of the case.

- Parking – some residents comment that parking at the centre is inadequate at peak times 
and the introduction of residential parking would exacerbate the issues.

- Amenity issues, around potential noise disturbance from occupiers within the building and, 
particularly in relation to the adjacent flats to the south, from the new access to the 
accommodation.

- Green Belt and Conservation Area issues – residents question the suitability of the 
development in the context of the site falling within both and what impact the development 
has on the overall character of the area..

- Appropriateness and character of the use – objectors raise issues around the nature of the 
accommodation, in terms of the standard of the units in terms of housing standards, 
conflicts with other activities on and users of the site and the nature of the use which some 
have referred to being akin to a hostel.

- General accessibility issues – concerns are raised as to whether the location is accessible 
for the model of car capped development effectively being proposed and the implications 
thereof for future residents.

- Loss of original site concept – some objections refer to the concept of the centre and how 
this may be affected by the loss of the existing facilities for specialist courses and the 
impact a more intensive residential use has on the arts centre function.

- Viability of concept – a number of objectors raise concerns at the viability of the model 
being proposed by the applicants – in particular is there a genuine demand amongst the 
target groups for units of the size proposed and what happens if the concept does not 
attract the level of occupation envisaged.

- One objector, understood to be a former officer at the centre has specifically queried the 
applicants submission on the financial case.

The submission in support of the application comments that the site is close to the town centre and 
requires only minor works which will have limited impact, the scheme is supported for providing 
low cost homes in a secure environment. 

Parish Council:  Ongar Town Council objected to the application with regard to the variation of the 
S106 agreement; the Committee made no other comments on the scheme. In the light of this 
element having been removed from the application, officers consider the Town Council have no 
objection.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The applicants have submitted that the current proposal is the culmination of an extended period 
of review of the operation of facilities at the site. They advise that under the terms of the funding 
received to improve the facilities including building the residential elements, their current 
repayment and interest free periods end in March 2017 and the Trust finds itself currently in a 
position where this funding will have to be serviced if the centre is to remain operational. Failure to 
adequately address this may  have implications for the continued existence of the centre. Efforts to 
meet these requirements are somewhat hampered by the general financial climate in which the 
centre operates whereby it has seen a reduction in its broader funding as a result of the loss of 
grant aid in recent years being experienced by all in the sector. The lack of success of the present 
use (the annual occupancy of the facility is around 16%) has also meant that it has not generated 
the income that was originally modelled and was anticipated may contribute to the servicing of the  
ongoing financial demands. Funding has now been secured to carry out the adaptations referred 
to in the application but it should be noted that this is time limited will cover only minimal 
adaptations to the building. 



In developing the current proposals the Trust have considered a range of options for more viable 
uses. These have included discussions with the Council, County Council, charities and housing 
providers over a range of options including, other leisure related occupation, care facilities and 
specialist supported housing without success. 

The Trust have established a community interest company to manage the property if the use 
proceeds. The Chair of the Trust will also act as Chair of the new company (Group 12) and a 
number of board members will sit on both boards. Day to day management will be linked in to the 
Arts Centre’s present management – a duty manager is on the site at all times while the centre is 
open and external agents deal with out of hours issues. A detailed tenancy agreement has been 
prepared, based on a model used by East Thames for the frontage units. The applicants state their 
view that the tenancy agreement introduces additional controls of residential tenants that are not 
available to them under the current use.

As Members are aware, financial considerations can be treated as material to planning decisions. 
While one objector argues that the financial model put forward by the applicants may be resolved 
by other means (for example restructuring the debt in light of financial conditions to seek to secure 
further charge free periods), such alternatives are not before Members, nor is there any evidence 
this is achievable. Officers consider that the applicants financial arguments should be 
acknowledged and given due weight, including concerns as to the future of the centre if alternative 
resource cannot be generated.. It is broadly acknowledged that arts funding has declined over a 
number of years and that facilities such as this must look at increasingly varied means of 
generating income to meet future costs. The existing use of the building does not generate 
sufficient revenue to justify its retention and alternative uses should be considered if they 
contribute to the overall viability of the community uses.

As to the use itself, there would appear no obvious reason to object to the principle of a residential 
use of this nature within the building. While the site is within the Green Belt boundary, it is close to 
the town, capable of use without major adaptation and does not have a materially greater impact 
on the Green Belt; thus it is consistent with policy GB8a subject to amenity and parking 
considerations below. The alterations to the building have no physical impact on the Conservation 
Area. 

In wider amenity terms, officers have had regard to the similarities between the existing and 
proposed. There is no increase in the number of rooms overall, and the existing use permits 
occupiers to be resident at all times of the day and night. The addition of basic facilities to the 
rooms and the loss of the direct link to users of the centre (notwithstanding the Trust’s intentions to 
encourage residents to participate in their activities by offering discount vouchers for use in the 
centre) will make only limited changes to the potential pattern of occupation. While activity will 
inevitably increase given the low occupancy of the building at present, this is a result of the lack of 
success of the existing model rather than anything connected to the character of the use. It is 
therefore difficult to argue in land use terms that the nature of the proposed use is so far removed 
from what is currently permitted to justify that residential amenity will be substantially harmed. 

Similar arguments arise over issues of parking in that the existing accommodation use shares the 
car park with other uses in the centre. There is nothing in particular to suggest that those who 
would currently use the building are any more or less likely to rely on a car than those who may 
occupy the building in the future.  Allocating a parking area for residential occupiers takes a 
realistic approach to the need to manage the site. 

A number of objections refer to the standard of accommodation, both in terms of housing 
standards, local need and accessibility. While issues around need are to some degree market led, 
the offer would appear to be unique in the area and would provide accommodation which local 
agents have advised there is demand for. The applicants advise that as a result of publicity for the 



scheme, they have also received expressions of interest. The site is no more or less accessible 
than any other part of Ongar town centre; local bus services link to other parts of the District and 
beyond. The units are not designed to meet national housing standards, but are aimed at a 
different market to permanent dwellings to which these standards are usually applied and any 
assessment on this issue would be misleading. The individual units provide a reasonable standard 
of facilities for individuals and communal spaces are available to residents as well as access to the 
centres facilities and activities.
       

Conclusion:

Officers consider that the financial circumstances of the centre are a significant factor in the 
development of the proposals and as a result the consideration of the application. The prospect 
that the arts and community use may not be able to survive without the income generated by this 
use is in your officer’s view material and provides unique and special circumstances in determining 
this application.

In terms of considering issues around the potential impact of the change of use, Members should 
have regard to the differences between the existing permitted use and the proposal and not be 
unduly affected by the current levels of activity. In this regard, the existing building contains the 
same number of rooms that could lawfully occupied 24 hours a day by occupants who may have 
access to vehicles that they wish to park on site. In this context, the changes are minor and do not 
in officers view amount to a significantly more intrusive use.

It is evident that the key to allaying neighbouring resident’s fears is that the accommodation is 
adequately managed. Assurances are in place in that there are links between the arts centre 
Board and the community interest company established to manage the accommodation and that 
day-to-day management will be directly linked. Members can be further assured that the continued 
interest of the arts centre are best served by good quality management of the whole site.

Members should also note that approving the planning application does not directly affect the 
existing section 106 agreement relating to the broader use of the building. This remains the 
subject of ongoing discussions and if it is concluded that the s106 agreement requires revision, 
this would need to be the subject of a separate application.

It is recognised that the issues in this case are finely balanced. A direct comparison between a 
fully operational use suggests that there are limited difference between the uses that in land use 
terms are not sufficient to argue that the use is unacceptable , and do not outweigh other 
arguments in favour of the application in terms of the diversity of the housing stock and the 
financial considerations for the centre.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Ian Ansell
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564481

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



123

 

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 3

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2436/16
Site Name: 46 St Johns Road, Epping, CM16 

5DP
Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/2436/16

SITE ADDRESS: 46 St Johns Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 5DP

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common

APPLICANT: Mrs Mary Kenny-Moth

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Single storey rear extension (Revised application to EPF/1599/16).

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587697

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Access to the flat roof over the extension hereby approved shall be for maintenance 
or emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a seating area, 
roof garden, terrace, patio or similar amenity area.

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

4 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587697


This application was deferred from the last Plans East Sub committee to enable members to carry 
out a site visit.
The original report is reproduced below

Description of Site: 

The application property comprises a semi detached three storey dwelling on the eastern side of 
St Johns Road.  It currently has a 2.5m deep single storey rear extension. Number 44 has 2.5m 
deep (approx.) two storey projection close to the mutual boundary with the application property. 
Number 48 has no extensions close to the boundary with the application site. 

Description of Proposal: 

Permission is sought for a single storey rear extension which measures 5.9m deep by 5.2m wide 
and 2.57m high to its flat roof. This extension will replace the existing single storey rear extension.

Materials include red facing bricks, powder coated aluminium double glazed fenestration and the 
roof will be covered in a glass reinforced plastic seal.
 

Relevant History:

Planning permission was refused under reference EPF/1599/16 for a single storey extension.

Policies Applied:

National Planning Policy Framework 
National Planning Policy Guidance

Combined Policies of Epping Forest District Local Plan (1998) and alterations (2006) 
DBE9: Loss of amenity
DBE10: Residential extensions

Consultation Carried out and Representations Received

EPPING TOWN COUNCIL: The proposed extension will cause loss of amenity for the 
neighbouring property in terms of sunlight and visual impact. The design and layout of the adjacent 
house and garden will result in an unsympathetic change due to its height, materials and length.
Relevant polices CP7, DBE2, DBE9 and DBE10.

5 letters were sent to occupants of adjoining and nearby properties. 1 objection was received.

The occupier of 48 St Johns Road objects on the following grounds.

Because my house is on the side of a hill, from the end of their existing extension, the ground floor 
rises 12” on my side of the fence therefore meaning I have to go up 2 steps into my garden.
The existing extension already stops the light and sun from getting into my kitchen and although 
there is a wooden fence between my property and that of 46 light and air does enter my garden. 
With a brick wall I would be in the shade particularly as the sum goes around the right of my 
property. Not to mention the fact the proposed extension would be longer than the existing one.
My property is on 3 levels, kitchen in a semi-basement and lounge, dining room on the first floor. 
The view from my lounge will be impaired and instead of looking at beautiful mature trees and 



greenery I will be looking at a grey flat roof. Property value may also be affected. If the existing 
extension was replaced like for like I would have no objection.

Main Issues and Considerations: 
 
The key considerations for the determination of this application are the impact of the proposal will 
have on the character and appearance of the area and neighbouring residential amenity.

Paragraph 39 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act requires that the Local Authority must 
seek to achieve ‘good design’. Policies contained within the National Planning Policy Framework 
define what ‘good design’ is.

Paragraph 58 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure that development will add to the 
overall quality of the area as well as respond to the local character, history and reflect the identify 
of local surroundings.

This application is a revised application following a previously refused scheme under reference 
EPF/1599/16 The previous application was refused on the grounds that 

“The proposed extension due to its height, depth and position close to the boundaries of the site 
would  neither complement nor enhance the existing building. It would also have a detrimental 
impact on the living conditions of the adjoining neighbour at 48 St Johns Road, through the 
proposal's  overbearing appearance  and the resultant loss of outlook to this neighbour. The 
proposal is therefore contrary to the requirements of Chapter 7 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework along with policies DBE9 and DBE10 of the Combined Policies of Epping Forest 
District Local Plan and alterations 2008. “ 

The amendments include reducing the depth of the extension from 6.3m to 5.9m and reducing its 
height from 2.8 to 2.57m.

The proposed extension will not be visible form the street scene or wider surrounding private realm 
beyond numbers 44 and 48 St Johns Road.  

The application property is three storeys high. Whilst the extension still remains larger than the 
existing single storey rear extensions in close vicinity of the application site, it is below maximum 
limitations allowed by the government under the prior notification of larger extensions scheme. 
(Number 17 St Johns Road has had approval for a 6.5m deep extension under reference 
EPF/0781/15). Furthermore the reductions in height and depth ensure that the first floor Victorian 
window ledge will not be concealed or removed by the development. This height is now the same 
as that of the existing single storey extension currently in situ.

Plans are therefore considered to now to be sufficiently changed to ensure that the proposed 
extension appears as a subsidiary feature in relation to the three storey host building. It will 
therefore have a neutral impact on the local distinctiveness of the area and as such complies with 
the requirements of chapter 7 of the NPPF and policy DBE10 of the Local Plan.

Impact on neighbour amenity

Number 48 St Johns Road is north of the application site. The nearest window at number 48 
serves a kitchen. There is a 1.8m fence on the boundary of the site, above which is a trellis and 
hedging. The garden at number 48 is currently significantly overgrown with trees. The height of the 
extension is the same at that of the existing extension therefore it will be mostly screened by  the 
existing boundary treatment between the two properties, where there are gaps in the hedging it will 



rise up around 700mm above the fence. It is therefore considered that the actual loss of light and 
sense of enclosure created by the proposal to number 48 St Johns Road would not be excessive. 

The proposal will extend 3.4m beyond the existing two storey rear extension at number 44 St 
Johns Road. The proposal will therefore not have a significant impact on the amenities of this 
neighbour in terms of light, outlook or privacy. The proposal therefore accords with the 
requirements of policy DBE9 of the Local Plan.

Other matters

Loss of view and loss of property value are not a material planning considerations.

Conclusion

The proposal has a design which complements the appearance of the application building and will 
have a neutral impact on the character and appearance of the area and impact on neighbouring 
residential amenity is not so excessive as to justify refusal of the scheme, approval is therefore 
recommended.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Sukhi Dhadwar
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564597

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



123

 

111.0m

CH
Def CF

CH

1.22m
 RH

1

5

Creeds Cottages

5

The Bell Hotel

65

55

41

51

45
Cottage

Creeds
Farm

Apple Tree

26

Cottages
1

4

1

Bell Farm

B 1393

CO
M

M
ON

Bell Common

Mast

LB
TCB

Pond

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 4

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2532/16
Site Name: 2 Bell Farm Cottages, High Road, 

Epping,CM16 4DF

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/2532/16

SITE ADDRESS: 2 Bell Farm Cottages
High Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 4DF

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common

APPLICANT: Mr R Bedell

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of outbuilding roof. Increase outbuilding wall height by 
300mm. Construct new roof on new external walls with a similar 
roof pitch. Replace garage door with glazing and instal a glazed 
gable end on the front elevation . Install mezzanine floor in 
outbuilding with spiral stair access. Install conservation flush 
rooflights on north east elevation.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587935

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 No development shall have taken place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For 
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself. 

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

Bell Farm Cottage is a two storey property located on the north side of the High Road on the edge 
of the built up area of Epping, the property backs onto open fields.  It is located within the Bell 
Common Conservation Area and the Metropolitan Green Belt.  2 Bell Farm Cottages is part of a 
row of three two-storey terraced properties that were built as Estate Workers Cottages and date 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587935


from the 1950’s.  To the east are two further groups of terraced properties and to the west is a 
detached property

Description of Proposal:

Raising the height of the external walls by 300mm and reconstructing the roof to the same pitch. to 
enable use of existing garage as a studio.  The design of the scheme has been amended in the 
course of the application to remove originally proposed side dormer windows and to improve the 
fenestration and detailing. 

Relevant History:

EPF/0379/08 - Side, front and rear extensions and alterations with demolition of existing 
outbuildings for provision of new garage.

EPF/0971/09 - Two storey rear extension with side canopy, alteration to windows and detached 
garage.  

Policies Applied:

CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
GB2A – Development within the Green Belt
GB7A – Conspicuous development
DBE9 – Loss of amenity
DBE10 – Residential extensions
HC6 – Character, Appearance and Setting of Conservation Areas
HC7 – Development within Conservation Areas
ST6 – Vehicle parking

The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received:

8 neighbouring properties were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed.

EPPING SOCIETY – Excessive arm to the openness of the Green Belt.

PARISH COUNCIL – Object. Inappropriate development within the Green Belt and detrimental to 
the character of the conservation area.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with the proposal relate to the impact on the Green Belt and the character and 
appearance of the development within the conservation area.

Green Belt:



The National Planning Policy Framework states that “a local planning authority should regard the 
construction of new buildings as inappropriate in Green Belt”, however provides a list of exceptions 
to this. This includes:

 The extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate 
additions over and above the size of the original building.

The dwelling has already benefitted from a substantial extension and the erection of the garage. 
The raising of the roof by 300m could be considered ‘proportionate’ to the original garage and 
would be a limited extension to an existing building, in line with the National Planning Policy 
Framework, and would not therefore be inappropriate development. The use of the garage for 
purposes ancillary to the dwelling house does not require planning permission, it is only the 
alterations to the building that are under consideration here.

Design and Conservation Area:

The proposed roof extension to the garage would not add excessive bulk to the outbuilding. The 
proposal has been revised in line with Conservation Officers comments in order for the design to 
complement the conservation area with conservation roof lights to reduce any additional bulk and 
the glazed gable end has been introduced to reduce the residential appearance of the outbuilding. 
The materials and design are appropriate to the Conservation Area location.

Other issues.
Due to the relatively small increase in height and the position of the building well away from the 
rear elevations of the adjacent properties and with no overlooking windows there will be no harm 
to adjacent residential amenity.

Although the proposal results in the loss of a garage there is ample remaining car parking space 
within the application site to meet current standards.

 
Conclusion:

Whilst the proposed extensions would result in a small increase in the size of the original 
outbuilding it is a proportionate addition to an existing building and not inappropriate development.  
It will not cause any significant harm to the Green Belt. The amended scheme is of a suitable 
design such that it will not harm the character of the Conservation Area.  There will be no harm to 
neighbouring amenity and the application complies with adopted policies and the NPPF and is 
recommended for approval. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Corey Isolda
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564380

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



123

 

Track

Tr
ac

k

Track

Path (um)

Path (u
m)

Path
 (u

m)

Tr
ac

k

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 5

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2709/16
Site Name: Norton Field Farm, Norton Lane, 

High Ongar, CM4 0LN

Scale of Plot: 1/5000



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/2709/16

SITE ADDRESS: Norton Field Farm
Norton Lane
High Ongar
Ongar
Essex
CM4 0LN

PARISH: High Ongar

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings

APPLICANT: Mr Ian Chisholm

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Change of use of agricultural land to camping and touring caravan 
site, erection of toilet and shower block building, construct passing 
place along existing track and implement landscape planting.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588454

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings number: PDB/16/217/02A and three drawings numbered  
PDB/16/217/05 comprising Toilet Block Plans and Elevations, Shepherd Hut plans 
and Elevations (Sleeping) and Shepherds Hut Plans and Elevations (Dining).

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes to the toilet and 
shower block have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, 
in writing. The development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved 
details.

4 Prior to the commencement of development, details of all measures in the 
installation of electric points within the site for use by any caravan, hut tent, yurt or 
other similar facility shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The works as agreed shall be fully implemented as approved and no 
additional electric points or cabling shall thereafter be installed within prior consent 
from the Local Planning Authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588454


5 No development shall take place until details of foul  drainage to the toilet and 
shower block, shepherd hut ensuite facilities and touring caravan pitches, including 
details of related groundworks, have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance 
with such agreed details.

6 No development shall take place until details of the landscaping of the site, including 
retention of trees and other natural features and including the proposed times of 
proposed planting (linked to the development schedule), have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved landscaping 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and at those times.

7 No development, including site clearance, shall take place until a scheme of soft 
landscaping and a statement of the methods, including a timetable, for its 
Implementation (linked to the development schedule), have been submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The landscape scheme shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details and the agreed timetable. If any 
plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive within a period of 5 years from the 
date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, it must be replaced by 
another plant of the same kind and size and at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand in writing. 

8 No more than 30 pitches, of which no more than 10 shall be for touring caravans, 
shall be provided within the site without further consent from the Local Planning 
Authority.

9 All caravans, huts, yurts, tents and other accommodation on the site shall only be for 
holiday accommodation  and shall not be used so as to provide permanent 
accommodation for any occupiers.

10 The site shall not be used for the purposes hereby approved at any time between 
1st December and 1st March in any years. During this period, no touring caravans 
shall be permitted to be kept on the site and all huts, tents, yurts or similar structures 
shall be removed from the site unless otherwise agreed by the  Local Planning 
Authority.

11 No additional hardstanding areas not indicated on the plan number PDB/16/217/02A 
hereby approved shall be constructed on any part of the site without prior consent of 
the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)



Description of Site:

Norton Field Farm  lies to the south of Norton Lane in a single track section of the road. The site 
has a road frontage of around 400metres and has two vehicles access to Norton Lane located 
towards either end of the frontage. The application site lies towards at the western end of the site 
and is located behind the dwelling which in the north-west corner of the site.  The land the subject 
of the application is served from the same access as this and currently comprises an open field 
with a number of movable animal shelters thereon used in connection with a seasonal duck egg 
business operating on the wider site. . Buildings served by the eastern site access and located 
more centrally include a number of uses including the egg business, a micro brewery, office space 
and a building for which permission was granted in September 2016 for flexible uses within B1 and 
B8 uses.

The site is wholly within the Green Belt in an area where no other built development is located 
within at least 400m in any direction.

Description of Proposal: 

The application relates to an area of around 0.85 ha effectively to the rear of the dwelling and 
seeks to change the use of the land from agricultural use to use for camping and touring caravans. 
Access to the camping ground will be from the existing access serving primarily the dwelling and 
on existing hard surface route through the site. 
 
One permanent building is proposed, a single storey weatherboarded block of around 29 sq.m 
floor area comprising showers, toilets and a laundry/sluice room located adjacent to the site 
boundary. The plans show nominally 10 pitches for touring caravans positioned adjacent to the 
access road. Other accommodation would comprise purpose built ‘shepherd hut’ buildings that 
would include sleeping huts with ensuite facilities and communal dining huts, nominally shown as 
aa maximum 10 sleeping and 2 dining huts (although his would be the maximum over a period of 
time – the applicant is intending to have only two or three commissioned in the first instance to test 
demand), and 11 pitches are shown for tent/yurts, the latter described in the application as ‘ sled 
mounted permanently framed but movable structures’, of which it is envisaged initially that around 
5 will be in use at any one time initially.. No hardstandings are proposed, caravans and vehicles 
would be sited on grassed areas.

Reference is made to electric points for caravans but no details are supplied, nor are details of 
proposals for drainage connections to shepherd hut ensuite facilities although both matters can be 
conditioned if required.  The application also indicates enhanced landscaping particularly around 
the site perimeter.

Relevant History:

None relevant to this application

Policies Applied:

CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
GB2A Development in the Green Belt
GB7A Conspicuous development
RST1 Recreational, sporting and tourist facilities
RST32 Leisure caravans and camping
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
LL10 Adequacy of provision for landscape retention
LL11 Landscaping schemes



ST4 Road safety
ST6 Vehicle parking

NPPF The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national 
policy since March 2012.  Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant 
policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above 
policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.  

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Date of site visit: 28 October 2016
Number of neighbours consulted: Seven 
Site notice posted:  28 October 2016

Responses received:  Two objections have been received.

WYTHAMS, CHELMSFORD ROAD - comments ‘Considerable concern as to change of use with 
the proposed use out of character with landscape of open fields with agricultural use & the site 
being very visible .It could be open to misuse & permanent residential use liable to attract 
undesirable residents .D2 is so wide a use any consent  would need to be very restricted. The 
approach lane is too narrow for caravan & trailer on a regular basis & obstruction to farm traffic 
serving surrounding farm land’

YEOMANS,CHELMSFORD ROAD -comment: ‘we are very concerned about the impact on a 
mostly single track road to this site. It can be dangerous at the best of times, we walk this road 
most days, so are fully aware of the impact to walkers, cyclists and transport having to reverse on 
meeting other vehicles. It’s not the site in question, it’s all the safety aspects.

PARISH COUNCIL:  High Ongar Parish Council wish to object on the grounds of lack of 
sustainability, difficult vehicular access to the site and would not improve the environmental 
situation (p65 of draft local plan)

Main Issues and Considerations:

The application falls to be considered on issues relating to emerging tourism policy, it 
appropriateness within and impact on the Green Bely, impact on the surrounding area, highway 
and traffic issues. 

National planning policy recognises the value that tourist accommodation brings to the local 
economy and local policy is adapting to reflect this. The emerging Local Plan is supportive of 
sustainable development of the visitor economy, including provision for visitor accommodation in 
all forms.  Consultants for the Council (Hotel Solutions) reported in August 2016 that across the 
District there were 4 caravan and camping sites and no sites providing camping pods or ‘glamping’ 
facilities (now recognised as specific visitor accommodation provision). In addition, no new visitor 
accommodation had been provided in the last 7 years. The report identifies an overall lack of 
visitor accommodation in the District, a market for enhanced facilities, including those being 
proposed in the application and identifies areas within reach of existing facilities such as Epping 
Forest as desirable locations for such uses. 

Green Belt policy recognises outdoor recreation as an appropriate use in the Green Belt and 
therefore regards some ancillary buildings thereto as being appropriate provide they preserve 
openness and do not conflict with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt. The proposals 
involve minimal interventions into the site, the only permanent building is relatively small and is 



located on the edge of the site and all other structures both motorised and otherwise will be of 
temporary nature, being situated on grassed areas only. In light of the site area, the level of site 
coverage will be minimal, such that the open character of the land within the Green Belt would not 
be compromised. 

Objectors and the Parish Council raise issues of vehicle access and officers do acknowledge that 
Norton Lane is narrow with limited passing places. However, it is evident that it is suitable for 
heavy vehicles to use with other buildings on the site and other nearby sites being serviced by 
large vehicles. There is nothing to suggest that a use of this nature would generate such a level of 
vehicular activity to constitute a hazard to either pedestrian or vehicular safety, a view supported 
by the Highway Authority . Comments that the proposals are not sustainable are difficult to 
support; the site is readily accessible to cyclists and there is a local footpath network crosses 
Norton Lane within 200 metres of the site entrance. Given such uses are best located in more rural 
locations, this would in its context appear to be a very sustainable location.

Conclusion:

All local evidence points to a lack of tourist accommodation of this type across the District. 
Recognition of the benefits of providing such facilities is recognised as being of benefit to the local 
economy and the emerging local plan takes a positive approach to providing such facilities in line 
with national policy.

Recreation uses are appropriate in the Green belt and the level of built development proposed 
(permanent and temporary) is not considered to have an adverse impact on the character of the 
Green Belt. 

While most visitors are likely to travel by car, the site is close to a public footpath and in a location 
suitable for cyclists; the overall level of vehicular activity could not be considered intrusive or 
excessive such that it may be considered a hazard to highway safety. The site also remains 
remote enough not to raise concerns at potential disturbance in the surrounding area.

Officers therefore recommend that the application be approved subject to conditions particularly 
limiting the number of pitches available to allow review in the event the use is so successful an 
expansion is required, a restriction on hard surfaces and a requirement to remove the shepherd 
hut and yurt / tent structures in the close season to allow the land to recover (which the applicant 
has indicated they would agree to).

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Ian Ansell
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564481

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk



123

 

75

Court

Carmelo

4

1

74

11

to

268

2

6

New Haven

223

264

21
9

252

260
258

221

215

28

Cottage

30

23
1White

4

22
9

22
7

Springfields

1

26

2831

1

36

2737

47

30

34 29

6

18

19

23

21

20

26

22

House

21

Rectory

109

58

7 8

11

56

57

15

51

70

50

71

64
63

65

1

4

B
EA

M
IS

H
 C

LO
SE

BEAMISH
CLOSE

GIBSON CLOSE

BL
AC

K
H

O
RS

E 
LA

N
E

C
U

N
N

IN
G

H
A

M
 R

IS
E

El Sub Sta
Blackhorse Lane

El
Sub
Sta

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 6

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2716/16
Site Name: 21 Beamish Close, North Weald, 

CM16 6JN

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/2716/16

SITE ADDRESS: 21 Beamish Close
North Weald
Essex
CM16 6JN

PARISH: North Weald Bassett

WARD: North Weald Bassett

APPLICANT: Mrs T Ives

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Part single storey and part two storey rear extension and front 
porch

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588494

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application site is terraced house located on Beamish Close, within the built up area of North 
Weald. The site is not within the Metropolitan Green Belt or within a conservation area.

Description of Proposal:

The application is for the erection of a part single storey part two storey rear extension and a front 
porch. The rear extension has been revised in the course of the application and reduced from 
5.85m in depth to 3.5m in depth and stretches the entire width of the property. The first floor 
element would also project 3.5 metres out to the rear of the property but only have a width of 4 
metres. No side facing windows are proposed. The single storey element of the extension would 
have a flat roof with 2 roof lights whilst the first floor element would employ a hipped roof, in 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588494


keeping with the original property. The porch will be similar to those of neighbouring properties 
with a pitched roof.

Relevant History:

None

Policies Applied:

CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
DBE9 – Loss of amenity
DBE10 – Residential extensions

The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received:

6 NEIGHBOURING PROPERTIES CONSULTED – 2 OBJECTIONS RECEIVED

20 BEAMISH CLOSE – The proposal will have an excessive impact on amenity and is too close to 
the boundary

22 BEAMISH CLOSE – The proposal will have an excessive impact on amenity and access to light 
on the first floor and is too close to the boundary

The neighbours were reconsulted on the revised reduced plans and the following response was 
received- 

20 BEAMISH CLOSE - The rear extension looks too close to our boundary with no detailed 
measurements given. We would like to see a clear measurement of this. We would like to see a 
maintained distance away from the boundary

22 BEAMISH CLOSE – Although the scheme has been reduced to 3.5 metres deep the proposal 
is still on the boundary between our properties. This will cause maintenance issues as the 500mm 
access gap will be removed. The first storey element will block light from the first floor bedroom 
window and cause issues with damp.

PARISH COUNCIL – Object. Overdevelopment and will have an adverse impact on neighbouring 
amenity. Concern at the proximity of the extension in relation to the neighbouring boundaries. 
Concern at blocking neighbours access to light.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issues to be considered relate to the impact on the character and appearance of the 
building and the street scene and neighbour’s amenities. 

Design:

The proposed extensions would increase the overall bulk and scale of the dwelling. However, both 
No.19 and No.22 Beamish Close have benefitted from two storey rear extensions and the proposal 



would be similar in design to these.  As such it is not considered that the design of the extension 
would be unduly detrimental to the character and appearance of the area.  The proposed front 
porch is well designed and proportionate and similar to others in the area and as such is 
appropriate to the street scene and the dwelling itself.

Amenities:

The proposed single storey extension would be situated on the shared boundaries with 
neighbouring properties; whilst this will have some impact on amenity, due to its relatively low roof 
height (2.65m) and limited depth it will not cause excessive harm to neighbouring amenity. The 
first floor element of the extension will be set 2 metres away from neighbouring boundaries; this 
will allow both neighbours to receive a sufficient amount of light to habitable rooms, and rear 
amenity space and will not have an excessively overbearing impact on amenity.  Whilst concern 
has been raised regarding loss of light to rear facing bedroom window at number 22, given the 
distance to this window and the orientation of the property the impact of the extension will be 
minimal. 

Other Issues:

Both the Parish Council and neighbours have voiced concern about the distance of the proposal 
from shared boundaries.. Under the General Permitted Development Order (2016) No. 20 would 
be able to extend the property along the shared boundaries without needing planning consent. 
There is no policy requirement to set development away from boundaries and maintenance is not 
a material planning consideration. 

Conclusion:

Whilst the proposed extension would be on the neighbouring boundaries of No.20 and No.22 
Beamish Close, it would not be dissimilar to the permitted development ‘fallback position’. 
Furthermore several other properties within the area benefit from significant extensions.

The proposal would not be unduly detrimental to the character and appearance of the area or the 
amenities of the neighbouring residents and as such complies with the guidance contained within 
the National Planning Policy Framework and the relevant Local Plan policies. Therefore the 
application is recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Corey Isolda
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564380

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

123



 

78.0m

76.8m

Und

Co Const Bdy

Southern Cross

Holly House

Primroses

Tuscan House

Horsegate

House
Albion

Maltings

Pond
House

Church

Rose Cottage

Little House

C
ot

ta
ge

W
illo

w

Watermans

Edmund

Br
ic

k 
C

ot
ta

ge
s

St Edmund's

3
1

Restcot
2

Green Edge Cottage

The Lone Pine
Cottage

Perry

Barn
Malt

The Old Exchange

Ja
sm

in
e 

Co
tta

ge

The
The

Cottage

Drain

Pond

Pond

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 7

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2782/16
Site Name: The Malt Barn, Matching Green, 

Matching, CM17 0QE

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/2782/16

SITE ADDRESS: The Malt Barn
Matching Green
Matching
Harlow
Essex
CM17 0QE

PARISH: Matching

WARD: Hastingwood, Matching and Sheering Village

APPLICANT: Mr Richard Porter

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Ground floor rear extension, two storey rear extension and internal 
alterations.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Refuse Permission  (Householder)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588724

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed part single storey and two storey extension by reason of its depth, 
bulk and scale would result in an overbearing and dominant addition detracting from 
the character and appearance of both the host dwelling and surrounding 
conservation area contrary to policies DBE10, HC6 and HC7 of the Epping Forest 
District Council Local Plan (1998) and alterations (2006).

This application is before this Committee since it would otherwise have been refused under 
delegated powers by the Director of Governance but there is support from the relevant local 
Parish/Town Council and no other overriding planning consideration necessitates refusal 
(Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, 
Schedule 1, Appendix A.(l))

Description of Site:

The Malt Barn is a converted barn adjacent to the highway of Matching Green which formed part 
of a larger barn of which much has been demolished.  The Malt Barn is located forward of the 
established building line of The Maltings which is a large detached dwelling and within the setting 
of the grade II listed building Albion House a 17th century dwelling.   
The detached dwellings and associated outbuildings surrounding the Green are arranged 
irregularly although with most immediately fronting the Green.  The architectural style of the 
dwellings within the area differs greatly providing a distinctive character to the Matching Green 
Conservation Area. 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588724


Description of Proposal:

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a part single storey, part two storey rear 
extension which measures 7.025m wide and projects 3m from the existing additions to the rear of 
the dwelling. The single storey element includes a pitched roof which will be integrated with the 
half pitch of the existing single storey addition to be extended.  A pitch roof is also included in the 
two storey element which extends the existing first floor addition.  The extension would be 
constructed from a mixture of weatherboarding and red brick to match the existing.  The proposed 
fenestration would match the existing configuration.
The changes to the previously refused application (EPF/0159/16 – see history below) is a 
reduction in depth of the extension by 500mm and changes in the proposed materials which would 
include a mix of weatherboarding and brick to match the existing. 
NB: Revised drawings have been submitted purely to regularise the situation relating to the design 
of the western elevation which had been incorrectly drawn originally and did not reflect the current 
design of the dwelling which would remain the same when viewed from the green.

Planning History:

EPF/0891/74 The Maltings – planning permission was granted to rebuild the barn to provide off 
street parking.
EPF/1058/99 The Maltings – permission granted for the renovation of the outbuilding (the barn) 
and the erection of a garden store.  Alterations to the barn included the erection of a rear 
extension (subject to alteration in this application) the extension of the existing roof structure and 
alterations to the existing carport canopy to create an annex to The Maltings.  The outbuilding was 
conditioned for ancillary use.
EPF/0027/08 The Maltings – Permission refused for the separation of the barn to be used as a 
separate dwelling but subsequently allowed on appeal.  The inspector also it acceptable to allow 
the conversion of the existing carports to residential use effectively creating a separate two 
bedroom dwelling house now known as The Malt Barn
EPF/0159/16 – Malt Barn - Permission refused for a part single storey, part two storey rear 
extension. The proposal was refused on the grounds that its depth, bulk and massing failed to 
relate to the original form of the Malt Barn resulting in an over development of the host dwelling.  
The proposal would result in an overbearing and dominant addition out of keeping with the 
surrounding Green Belt, Conservation Area and setting of a grade II listed building and contrary to 
policies DBE1, DBE10, GB2A, GB7A, HC6, HC7, HC12 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan 
(1998) and alterations (2006) published 2008.  

Comments and representations:

Surrounding neighbours have been notified and a site notice was erected.  

Matching Parish Council - The Parish Council SUPPORTS this application as it does not interfere 
with the amenities of any neighbouring property and is well secluded.

Three letters of objection have been received by neighbouring occupiers.  These are summarised 
below:

ALBION HOUSE – OBJECTION – Impact on trees on the boundary; separating wall not shown on 
plans – is this to be removed or retained? Very little light involving areas of ground floor which 
could mean a future application for windows overlooking our property which we would object to 
vehemently; Historical print in Design and Access Statement misleading; further development 
would be detrimental to site and conservation area; realignment of living quarters could be done 
without further extension.
THE OLD TELEPHONE EXCHANGE– OBJECTION – Outline of the planning history on the site; 
internal re-arrangement of rooms has taken place; barn doors to west elevation has been 



removed; window added to north elevation overlooking our property; further decrease in visual 
aspect enlarging the existing two storey rear extension dominating the skyline; the application is 
overdevelopment in the green belt and within a conservation area contrary to policies DBE9, 
GB7A and HC6 and HC7.
ROSE COTTAGE– OBJECTION – since permission for building to become a house the garden 
room has been converted to a bedroom and the barn doors to the west elevation are shown to be 
removed; Malt Barn in its present form already dominates the skyline more than the old barn used 
to and obliterates view of The Old Telephone Exchange and everything but the roof of the Pond 
House; the proposal is overdevelopment of the green belt and conservation area; Malt Barn is 
surrounded by 9 Grade II Listed Buildings; it is the only black barn facing the green and to be 
developed here is massive overdevelopment and would not be in keeping with the character, style 
and openness of this beautiful, historical conservation area.

Policies Applied:

DBE9 – Loss of amenity.
DBE10 – Residential extensions
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt
GB7A – Conspicuous development
HC6 – Character, Appearance and setting of Conservation Areas
HC7 - Development within Conservation Areas
HC12 – Development affecting the setting of Listed Buildings.
The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan.  Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the NPPF and therefore are afforded full weight.
National Planning Policy Framework 2012

Principle of development/main issues:

The main issues of consideration in this instance are the design and the impact of the proposed 
development upon the host dwelling and the conservation area; setting of a listed building; the 
impact upon the Green Belt and potential impact on the living conditions of neighbouring 
occupiers.

Character and Appearance

The Malt Barn was subject to alterations during 1999 under planning permission EPF/1058/99. 
The erection of a two storey rear extension and alterations to the roof structure increased the bulk 
and mass of the barn.  The original carport canopy although increased in depth and width retained 
an element of openness and enhanced the historical character of the barn. 
The conversion of the barn to a separate residential dwelling in 2008 also allowed the conversion 
of the adjoining carport canopy into habitable rooms.  The alteration of the carport effectively 
created an enclosed single storey element to the building adding to the bulk and mass of the 
residential conversion.   
The current proposal seeks to further increase the depth of the existing single storey and two 
storey additions to the rear.  Conservation Officers are primarily concerned with the fact that the 
1999 permission introduced domestic elements with the agricultural building losing part of its 
original character. The proposal here would, by reasons of its scale and massing cause further 
harm to the Malt Barn, denying the hierarchy within the building and making the original building 
extremely difficult to read and understand. The gable element which should always remain 
subservient spatially and visually to the main body of the building, would become extremely 
dominant. Its disproportionate dimensions would unbalance the building and the main body would 
appear completely overwhelmed by the extension. 
Whilst the building is now used for domestic purposes in the form of a residential dwelling, any 
development within a conservation area should preserve or/and enhance the character and 



appearance of the area; the proposal is not considered to do this due mainly to its disproportionate 
size in relation to the existing dwelling. The cumulative impact of both the previous alterations and 
the proposal would cause undue harm to the Malt Barn and as a consequence be detrimental to 
the character and appearance of the conservation area. 
With regards to the potential impact on Albion House, the Council’s Conservation Officer considers 
that the proposal would not materially affect the setting of this Grade II Listed Building given the 
slight reduction in depth and change in materials which would soften its impact.
However, in light of the above, the depth, bulk and massing created by the proposal is considered 
unacceptable.  The additions will result in an over-dominant structure which fails to relate to the 
original form of the barn or the barns position with this historic complex of buildings which fails to 
conform to Local Plan policies DBE10, HC6 and HC7.

Impact on the Green Belt

Whilst the previously submitted application was refused on the grounds that it would be out of 
keeping with the green belt, the building has not been extended since it was converted to a 
dwelling. The extension to the rear was approved prior to its conversion and therefore the dwelling 
is still in its original form with the proposal constituting a limited extension to that dwelling. 
However the NPPF does state that extensions should not be disproportionate to the size of the 
original building. As can be seen from the historic photograph on page 13 of the Design and 
Access Statement the original building was larger than the building as extended in 1999. There is 
not clear evidence which shows that the larger element of the building was removed, i.e. pre-1948 
so it is difficult to say for certain how large the building was at that time.
Therefore, it is not considered that the two extensions, (this and the 1999 permission), would result 
in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original dwelling and even in relation 
to the building prior to the 1999 extension, this and the previous addition increases the size of the 
building by approximately 30% in volume terms as much of the floor space created previously was 
within the roof.
Furthermore, the dwelling sits within the existing village envelope where the principle of limited 
infilling is acceptable so extending the building to this degree is considered acceptable in terms of 
potential impact on the green belt. The slightly smaller proposal here is therefore considered to 
comply with Local Plan policies GB2A and GB7A and paragraph 89 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012.

Neighbours Living Conditions

In general, it must be remembered that the erection of extensions can seriously disadvantage a 
neighbour by being overbearing in size and scale, create a loss of privacy and reducing the level 
of daylight. The amenity and privacy of neighbours must be considered before the erection of an 
addition.
In order to establish the impact of the proposed development upon the amenity of the 
neighbouring properties, it is important to consider any loss of outlook or sense of enclosure that 
may result from the proposed extension.   In this instance the proposed extensions are located 
16m from the corner of The Maltings to the northeast, 20m from the nearest point to Albion House 
to the southeast and in excess of 40m from The Old Telephone Exchange further to the north. 
These distances are sufficient to safeguard occupiers from a loss of outlook or sense of enclosure 
and not to result in any material level of overshadowing. The size of the addition has been slightly 
reduced in depth from the previously refused application which was not refused on the grounds 
that the proposal would materially affect the living conditions on neighbours.
A window is proposed in the first floor northern elevation but this is set in excess of 40m from 
facing windows at The Old Telephone Exchange and at an angled distance of approximately 18m 
from the nearest corner of The Maltings to the Northeast. 
It is still considered that the proposal would not result in an excessive loss of amenity to 
neighbouring occupiers therefore complying with DBE9 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.



Response to Neighbour Representations

Impact on Trees on the boundary – No objections have been received from the Councils Tree and 
Landscape Officer. The trees within the neighbours have permission to be removed which the 
objector states that they will do this when the weather is better.

Separating wall not shown on plans – It appears that the wall would be removed where the 
extension would be as shown on proposed plan RHP15627/02A. However this is not considered 
pertinent to the application. If the wall belongs to the applicant then this could be removed without 
permission at any time. A means of enclosure in this location could be erected to a height of 2m.
Very little light at ground floor may result in future application for a window in the side – windows 
proposed to eastern elevation so it may not be necessary to insert a ground floor window in the 
side. However the insertion of new windows and doors that are of a similar appearance to those 
used in the construction of the house are permitted without requiring planning permission and it is 
not considered that a window overlooking the driveway area would result in an excessive loss of 
amenity to that neighbour.  

Historical print is misleading – Whilst the original malt barn formed part of a larger site initially, the 
rationale behind including the photograph was to show the size of the building in relation to what is 
there currently.

Further development would be detrimental to site and conservation area – See Character and 
Appearance section

Realignment of living quarters could be done without further extension – This may be true but does 
not stop an application being submitted and considered. 

Internal re-arrangement of rooms has taken place – doesn’t require planning permission

Barn doors to west elevation has been removed – this has since been amended and the barn door 
would be retained to the front.

Window added to north elevation overlooking our property – considered above – too far to cause 
loss of privacy

Further decrease in visual aspect – dwelling is in excess of 40m from the proposed extension so 
impact is not considered excessive when viewed from this property

Application is overdevelopment in the green belt and within a conservation area – Issues 
considered in main body of report

Malt Barn in its present form already dominates the skyline more than the old barn used to and 
obliterates view of The Old Telephone Exchange – the view across third party land is not a 
significant planning consideration. This objectors dwelling is considered too far for their outlook to 
be materially affected.

Conclusion:

The proposed part single storey and two storey extension by reason of its depth, bulk and massing 
fails to relate to the original form of the Malt Barn resulting in an over development of the host 
dwelling.  The proposal would result in an overbearing and dominant addition out of keeping with 
the Conservation Area and setting of a grade II listed building and contrary to policies DBE10, 
HC6, HC7 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan (1998) and alterations (2006) published 2008. 
 



Way Forward:
The proposal is not considered to materially impact on the openness of the green belt nor on the 
setting of the listed building at Albion House to the south. Therefore any proposed extension would 
have to satisfy concerns relating to impact on the conservation area and would have to be 
designed such that it would not detract from the character of the existing dwelling and surrounding 
area.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Steve Andrews
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564337

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



123

123

 
62.6m

67.6m

62.1m

74.8m

Co
 C

on
st

, C
P

& 
ED

 B
dy

1.
52

m
 R

H

Parnells

Nether House

Smallholding

Longfields

Piggery

Longcroft

Brookside

Farm

Butlers Farm

Brookend

B
A

S
S

E
T

T
'S

LA
N

E

GP

Track

GP

Te
nn

is
 C

ou
rt

Path (um)

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 8

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2843/16
Site Name: The Oaks, Bassetts Lane, 

Willingale, CM5 0GJ
Scale of Plot: 1/2500



Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/2843/16

SITE ADDRESS: The Oaks
Bassetts Lane
Willingale
Essex
CM5 0GJ

PARISH: Willingale

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings

APPLICANT: Mr Frank Blaker

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed improvements and extension to existing agricultural 
building and change of use to residential dwelling along with 
conversion of existing barn building into non-habitable use for 
additional utility, garage and storage space and construction of a 
small link extension between barn building and adjacent proposed 
house (amended application to previously approved scheme ref: 
EPF/3015/15).

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588813

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved Location Plan and drawings nos: one (Jan 2015), one (Sep 2016), two, 
three, four, five Rev: A, six, seven, eight & nine

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those specified within the submitted application, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no extensions or outbuildings 
generally permitted by virtue of Class A, B, C, D or E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the 
Order shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning 
Authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588813


5 The area of residential curtilage shall be limited to the area shown on drawing no: 
five Rev: A.

6 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

7 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

8 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 



follows]

9 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

10 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

11 No development, including site clearance, shall take place until a scheme of soft 
landscaping has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in 
writing. The landscape scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive within a period of 5 
years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, it must be 
replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the same place, unless 
the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand in writing. 

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application site is a small agricultural site located on the eastern side of Bassetts Lane. The 
wider site contains three main buildings and some smaller structures. Access to the site is by way 
of a small track from Bassetts Lane. The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt. 
Consent has previously been granted to convert and extend the main building to a residential 
dwelling.

Description of Proposal:

Amended application to that previously granted consent to enable a second building to be 
converted into a garage and ‘non-habitable’ purposes incidental to the enjoyment of the consented 
residential dwelling. The plans show this area as a ‘multi-purpose utility space’, WC and sauna 



with stairs to the loft area. The second building would be linked to the previously approved 
dwelling by way of a link containing a corridor and a study.

The proposed development would continue to provide a three bed residential dwellinghouse, 
although this would potentially allow for greater habitable space (including a possible additional 
bedroom). The property would be served by the existing access and would benefit from a small 
area of amenity space to the side of the building.

The proposed link would bridge the 2.5m gap between the two existing buildings and would have a 
pitched roof to a ridge height of 4m and eaves height of 2.6m. The conversion of the second 
building would involve the installation of a dwarf brick wall and external recladding to match that of 
the main dwelling. A garage door, standard door and new windows would be installed at ground 
floor level and a first floor gable window and rooflights would be installed to serve the loft space.

Relevant History:

EPF/0712/94 – Construct agricultural buildings to replace existing agricultural buildings – refused 
23/02/95
EPF/0814/95 – Demolish existing buildings and erect new poultry rearing sheds – refused 
30/04/96
EPF/0838/97 – Extension and alterations to existing barn and retention of drainage works – 
approved/conditions 06/10/97
EPF/1088/02 – Change of use of building to residential, new roof and other alterations – refused 
04/10/02 (appeal dismissed 28/02/03)
EPF/0687/03 – Change of use of land to residential with stationing of one residential caravan – 
refused 02/06/03
EPF/0387/15 – Prior notification of change of use from Agricultural to Residential (Use Class C3) 
and associated operational development – prior approval required and granted 24/04/15
EPF/3015/15 - Proposed improvements and extension to existing agricultural building and change 
of use to residential dwelling (alternative to EPF/0387/15) – approved/conditions 22/01/16

Policies Applied:

CP1 – Achieving sustainable development objectives
CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
CP3 – New development
CP6 – Achieving sustainable urban development objectives
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt
GB8A – Change of use or adaptation of buildings
DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring properties
DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt
DBE8 – Private amenity space
DBE9 – Loss of amenity
ST1 – Location of development
ST6 – Vehicle parking
RP3 – Water quality
RP4 – Contaminated land

The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight.



Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received:

5 neighbouring properties were consulted.

PARISH COUNCIL – Object. The Parish Council notes that permission was exceptionally granted 
(subject to conditions) in 2015 notwithstanding that the property is situated in the Green Belt, 
having regard to Class Q of Part 3 of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015.

The Council believes that the special time-limited exception for rural agricultural conversions to 
residential use does not extend to the provision of garaging, hard-standings and other uses 
associated to the main residential permission, which it considers to be inappropriate in the 
greenbelt.

The original planning permission specifically limited the development to within the area marked in 
red on drawing 2, being effectively the perimeter of the existing agricultural building, and the 
Council notes that the current application incorporates:

- A new study area in the “link” between the proposed new “garage” block and the proposed 
dwelling.

- A sauna within the garage block itself.
- An upper floor accessed by a spiral staircase which would facilitate unauthorised additional 

residential use.

The Council considers that any further development beyond that approved in the 2015 permission 
would amount to inappropriate development in the greenbelt in contravention of NPPF and would 
have a harmful effect on the openness and character of the site, which is visible from footpath No. 
55 which runs alongside and to the rear of the subject property.

BUTLERS FARM – Object as the building to be incorporated is simply a steel frame of a modern 
hay store and the extension would constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt. There 
is no need to further enlarge the previously approved dwelling and the property is next to a 
footpath.

Issues and Considerations:

The key considerations in this application are whether the development is appropriate within the 
Green Belt or generally in this location, the design, and the impact on neighbour’s amenity.

Green Belt:

The application site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt. Paragraph 89 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework states that “a local planning authority should regard the construction of 
new buildings as inappropriate in Green Belt”, however does provide a list of exceptions to this, 
including “the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in 
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building”. It also states that “the 
re-use of buildings provided that the buildings are of permanent and substantial construction” is 
not considered to be inappropriate provided they “preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do 
not conflict with the purposes of including land in Green Belt”.

Initially a prior determination was granted for the change of use of the existing agricultural building 
into a residential dwellinghouse however this prior determination did not allow for any extension of 
the building. However it was agreed that a new, enlarged roof, and front projection would be a 



visual improvement to the site and therefore, given the previous fallback position, planning consent 
was granted to extend and convert the building in 2016.

This application would further enlarge the proposed dwelling by way of a link extension and 
through the change of use of the adjacent redundant agricultural building. This would also increase 
the area of residential land associated with the dwelling to at least incorporate the adjacent building 
and link as shown on drawing No. five.

The second building proposed for conversion is a steel framed hay store that appears to be 
unused and has little left in terms of wall covering. Whilst the conversion of this building would 
require significant external works (such as reroofing, recovering, additional doors/windows, these 
works could take place without removal of the existing steel frame of the building and therefore this 
would still constitute a ‘conversion’ of the building.

The NPPF requires that the re-use of buildings “preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do 
not conflict with the purposes of including land in Green Belt”. Although the proposed development 
would further increase the level of built form on the site paragraph 89 allows for “the extension or 
alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate additions over and above 
the size of the original building”. The increase in built form would be restricted to the small link 
extension which would be minor and not unduly detrimental to the openness of the Green Belt. 
Therefore it is not considered that this would be a disproportionate extension and as such the 
proposal would not constitute inappropriate development harmful to the Green Belt.

Location of development:

Whilst the application site is located within an unsustainable location there is an existing consent 
for the change of use of the main building to a dwelling and therefore there would be no greater 
impact in terms of sustainability as a result of this development.

Design:

The application site is relatively isolated and consists of a small yard of agricultural buildings. 
Whilst the proposed conversion and extension would increase the scale of the residential dwelling 
and create a greater residential presence on the site the proposed works would nonetheless be a 
more visually appealing development than the existing dilapidated agricultural buildings on the site 
and would be suitably designed for this rural location.

The building is set some 90m from the highway boundary and is well screened along the road 
frontage. It is highlighted that a public footpath runs along the rear (east) of the site and views of 
the building would be available from this right of way however it is not considered that the resulting 
building would be visually detrimental within this setting and therefore would not cause harm to 
users of the public footpath.

Amenity considerations:

Given the location of the application site there would be no detrimental loss of amenity to nearby 
residents.

The level of amenity space/residential land would increase as part of this application in order to 
incorporate the second building and link extension. Whilst the original red lined application site 
incorporated a large area of land, including the field to the northwest of the buildings, the 
supporting statement argues that the curtilage will be strictly limited to the area immediately 



adjacent to the buildings and a revised plan has been received clearly identifying this area 
(drawing No. five Rev: A). The proposed domestic curtilage is a relatively small area and can be 
suitably delineated by additional landscaping as referred to within the supporting statement and as 
such there will not be any harm to the character, visual amenity or openness of the Green Belt  as 
a result of this. Suitable conditions can be imposed to achieve this. The remaining land within the 
ownership would retain its agricultural use.

Other matters:

Contamination:

Due to its former use as a smallholding there is the potential for contaminants to be present over 
all or part of the site. Therefore contaminated land investigations and (where necessary) 
remediation will need to be undertaken, which can be dealt with by condition.

Permitted development rights:

Whilst the proposed extensions to the building are considered acceptable any further additions 
may result in a loss of openness and impact on the overall appearance of the building. Therefore it 
would be necessary to remove permitted development rights for this development to control any 
additional development.

Conclusion:

Consent has previously been granted for the conversion and extension of the main building into a 
residential dwelling. The conversion of the second building and erection of the small link extension 
would not result in disproportionate extensions to the existing building and the resulting dwelling 
would not be significantly more harmful to the openness of the Green Belt than the existing 
permitted scheme. The domestic garden area can be suitably restricted to prevent the incursion of 
domestic paraphernalia onto open Green Belt land. There would be no detrimental impact on 
neighbours amenities or the appearance of the area and as such the proposal complies with the 
NPPF and the relevant Local Plan policies which allow for the change of use of existing buildings 
and the limited extension of existing buildings within the Green Belt. The application is therefore 
recommended for approval subject to conditions.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



123

 

Magnolia House

Theydon Hall

The Coach House

Stales

The Granary

The Old

Barn

Squires

Farriers

The Grooms Lodge

Carriages

Farm
Theydon Hall

M
 1

1

Gantry

Tr
ac

k

Pond

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 9

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2882/16
Site Name: Land adjacent to Magnolia House, 

Abridge Road, Theydon Bois, CM16 
7NR

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 9

APPLICATION No: EPF/2882/16

SITE ADDRESS: Land adjacent to Magnolia House
Abridge Road
Theydon Bois
Epping
Essex
CM16 7NR

PARISH: Theydon Bois

WARD: Theydon Bois

APPLICANT: Mr E Maxwell

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Construction of access way to serve existing storage buildings

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588995

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 3331/21 and shall be thereafter retained in perpetuity for 
the approved purpose.

3 No development shall take place until details of the proposed means of construction 
and surface materials  for the access road have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed surfacing shall be made of 
porous materials and retained thereafter or provision shall be made and retained 
thereafter to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or porous 
area or surface agreed by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed surface 
treatment shall be completed prior to the access way hereby permitted being first 
bought into use.

4 No development, including site clearance, shall take place until details of tree and 
hedge planting as indicated on the approved plan and a statement of the methods, 
including a timetable, for its Implementation (linked to the development schedule), 
have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The 
landscape scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 
the agreed timetable. If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive within a 
period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, it 
must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the same place, 
unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand in writing.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588995


This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application site comprises open land to the north west side of Magnolia House, a residential 
property on the west side of Abridge Road.  To the south lie buildings formerly part of Theydon 
Hall Farm now converted to residential accommodation. To the north of the field lies the M11 in an 
elevated section which is largely screened by existing trees.

The site and surrounding land lies within the Green Belt.

Description of Proposal: 

Permission is sought to construct a new access road across the land connecting storage buildings 
(for which a Lawful Development Certificate was granted in October 16) to the road via a new 
access (granted permission in August 2015). 

The access is shown on the plans to take the shortest direct route and incorporates two passing 
bays. It is proposed to use a lightweight, permeable cellular grid system which can be infilled with 
a range of finish materials. The access will be screened by hedging indicated along the full length 
of the north side and around half the length on the south side, beyond a fenced area attached to 
Magnolia House. Further tree planting is indicated along the north side.

Details of both surface finishes and landscaping are proposed to be addressed by discharge of 
conditions if approved. 

Relevant History:

EPF/1493/15 Formation of vehicle access – approved. 

EPF/1005/16 Certificate of Lawful Development for existing use of site for B8 storage purposes – 
approved  

Policies Applied:

CP1 Achieving sustainable development objectives
CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
GB2 Development in the Green Belt
GB7A Conspicuous development
U3B Sustainable drainage systems
DBE9 Loss of Amenity

NPPF The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national 
policy since March 2012.  Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant 
policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above 
policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.  

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Date of site visit: 01 December 2016
Number of neighbours consulted:  8



Site notice posted:  No, not required
Responses received:  No response has been received from neighbours consulted, however two 
local amenity groups have made comments.

Theydon Bois and District Rural Preservation Society comment as under;

The Society objects to this application for the following reasons.
 
Grounds for approval of a previous application, to legitimise the continued use of the storage 
buildings, depended in part on the existence of existing means of access - as attested to by the 
planning officer. 

The present proposal of a 300m long, 6m wide track way, with passing places, across open fields 
constructed from shingle or gravel constitutes a loss of openness in the Green Belt contrary to the 
tenets of the NPPF. This would create an unneeded addition to the open-field landscape. While 
the proposed landscaping scheme seems attractive, it is more in keeping with the driveway to a 
large house or residential complex than the present natural landscape character of open fields 
which should be maintained. 

No intensification of traffic movements is proposed for this site and these at present seem minimal. 
The bend in the road is a gentle curve and the verge at the present access is wide giving very 
reasonable visibility. The newly located access is no better in this respect as it is still close to the 
bend. It seems likely therefore that the dangers of the existing access are minimal and outweighed 
by the harm to the Green Belt in this proposal. In view of the existence of the previously claimed 
access, no special circumstances appear to exist and the Society believes this application should 
be refused. 

Theydon Bois Action Group make the following comments;

Theydon Bois Action Group would like to register a strong objection to the proposed new extensive 
stretch of access trackway across an open Green Belt field.
 
The storage use is stated to have been continuous for 10 years and this has been accepted by 
Epping Forest District Council who granted an LDC in respect of EPF/1005/16. The applicant 
refers to evidence showing the movements of vehicles around the field for this period. The 
applicant states in the final paragraph of page 1 of the Planning Statement for the current 
application that:-"It was recognised as a result of the evidence submitted with the LDC application 
that the lawful storage use has been served from several accesses over the years, including direct 
from Abridge Road across the applicant's open field." These arrangements have obviously 
facilitated the previously unlawful storage use for the past 10 years as indicated in the 
photographic evidence showing vehicle tracks around the grass field adjacent to Magnolia House 
as well as apparent vehicle movements to the storage buildings via the residential curtilage of 
Magnolia House itself. 

There is, therefore, no need for an extensive stretch (200 metres by 3 metres) of 'plastic cellular 
construction topped with gravel or shingle' trackway, as the storage business has operated for 10 
years without such a trackway. The proposed trackway would introduce an alien, intrusive feature 
into an otherwise open grassed field on agricultural land in the Green Belt which would be 
detrimental to the landscape character. This would be an encroachment into the Green Belt 
countryside and would be contrary to Paragraph 80, bullet point 3, of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). Chapter 9 of the NPPF is entitled 1Protecting Green Belt land' and the 
opening paragraph (79) states that 11the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their 
openness and their permanence." 



A landscaping scheme has been proposed to 'soften the visual impact of the access track’  It is 
therefore recognised by the applicant that the proposed trackway has a harmful visual impact on 
the openness of the Green Belt and requires screening. It is suggested that the landscaping would 
introduce native species and increase biodiversity. However, planting native species to enhance 
biodiversity could be carried out for its own sake and is not dependent on the development of the 
trackway.

The applicant states that the construction of the trackway is an engineering operation and would 
not represent an inappropriate development in the Green Belt, citing paragraph 90 of the NPPF. 
However, there is a caveat to para. 90 that the engineering operations may not be inappropriate" 
provided they preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of 
including land in Green Belt." In this case, the openness of the Green Belt would indeed be 
compromised and the trackway would not "safeguard the countryside from encroachment11, and 
would be contrary to para. 80 of the NPPF. In order to overcome the harm to the Green Belt, very 
special circumstances must be demonstrated and this is not the case here. The applicant states 
that it was recognised with the granting of the LDC "that the lawful storage use has been served 
from several accesses over the years" and so there is no need for this specific trackway and there 
are no very special circumstances to justify the harm it would cause to the Green Belt. 

Furthermore, the applicant. in his conclusion, cites para.14 of the NPPF relating to the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. However, he has overlooked the second bullet 
point regarding any adverse impacts of a development and footnote 9, which states that the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development should be restricted in accordance with specific 
policies, including ''land designated as Green Belt". 

In conclusion, we do not consider that any very special circumstances exist to overcome the harm 
that the proposed inappropriate development would have on the openness and landscape 
character of this Green Belt site. 
We would respectfully ask you to refuse permission. 

Parish Council:  Theydon Bois Parish Council have commented :

The Parish Council are of the view that the proposed construction of this access way across open 
field land would be harmful to the openness of the Green Belt and therefore represents  
inappropriate development in the Green Belt where there are no very special circumstances to 
outweigh the harm caused.

In the recent application (EPF/1005/16) for B8 storage use of the buildings this access way would 
serve, the Officer’s Report implied that there were 3 access points available to reach the buildings. 
This would surely suggest that there are no ‘very special circumstances’ for creating such a long 
access way across open field land which would have an adverse impact on the character of the 
site’ 

Main Issues and Considerations:

The application raises no direct amenity issues in relation to immediate neighbours and as a result 
the application falls to be considered on the Green Belt issues. Such consideration does need to 
have due regard to the two most recent applications for the vehicle access and the lawful 
development certificate for storage use which have a significant and material  effect on 
consideration of the application..

It is noted that all objectors make reference to comments in the report for the Lawful Development 
Certificate application that discuss access to the site but officers would argue this point has been 
misinterpreted. The relevant paragraphs are reproduced below:



Objections also raise issues of access to the building. It is apparent that before the site 
was sub-divided, access was available from the land to the south. A boundary fence was 
erected between the two probably as part of the residential conversion, although access 
through this route was retained, aerial photographs show that a hard surface area runs up 
to the boundary and officers have seen that part of the fencing abutting this is removable.

 Vehicle access is also available from Abridge Road where three points of access are 
identified. The crossover for the new access approved in 2015 has been constructed to 
the highway but the works to the site to remove fencing and shrubs has not been 
undertaken.  The access replaced an access t some distance to the north which the 
applicant advises has never been used in the last 10 years. This access can be identified 
as the former dropped kerb was removed by the highway authority when installing the new 
access and replaced by new kerbstones; the nature of the landscape supports the 
contention that this access has not been used for many years. The third access lies 
between the two and the applicant states that this has been used as various times. The 
access is gated although no dropped kerb exists. Aerial photographs support the 
contention that this access has been used in the past; vehicle tracks are clearly visible 
from this access and while other photographic evidence shows it’s use has not been 
continuous the supports the contention that it has been used previously.

Thus, the access from the south through the original farm buildings now in residential use appears 
to have been discontinued when the residential use commenced. The three access points on 
Abridge Road comprise the new southern access that at the time had not been completed (and is 
the access shown on the current plan), the northern access disused for at least 10 years on the 
applicants admission where the crossover has subsequently been removed and the central access 
that has been in recent use without a formal crossover. It is clear therefore that at the time of the 
report, there was a single point of access in use.

It is recognised that historically, the nature of the storage use on the site has been primarily for 
long term storage generating limited vehicular trips. It is possible however that the greater certainty 
afforded by the granting of the LDC will see future users requiring greater access to the site, 
thereby increasing vehicular activity. It is evident that the new access point is in part positioned to 
facilitate this providing a more direct route between the road and the buildings. As such the need 
to provide adequate access to the lawfully used storage buildings would constitute very special 
circumstances to support development in the Green Belt.

In assessing harm, it is appropriate to consider not only the direct impact of the development .but 
also the applicant’s fall back position. 

On the first issue, it is not uncommon to find long access roads within the Green Belt serving 
remote buildings. In this case, the access will be largely screened from the road by the dense 
foliage around the access point and can be further screened by tree and hedge planting. The road 
surface would not be a tarmac or concrete finish but involves a flexible system that can be finished 
in a less obtrusive manner to minimise the impact of its appearance and would be permeable. 
Officers therefore consider that the impact would not be such that serious harm would result.

On the second issue, neither the Council nor the Highway Authority is in a position to prevent the 
buildings being accessed across the field. Thus the alternative would be that vehicles continue to 
cross the field, possibly by a variety of routes depending on the ground conditions at different 
times of the year. Officers consider that a field with various vehicular routes used to cross it, with 
ruts where vehicles partially sink in poor conditions, would have a far more significant impact on 
the appearance of the Green Belt than the application proposal.  



Conclusion:

Officers consider that in the light of the Lawful Development Certificate granted for the storage use 
and the planning permission for the vehicle crossover, then provision of a means of access to link 
the two would constitute very special circumstances to justify the development in the Green Belt. 
There is little physical or visual harm to the openness or character of the area as a result of the 
development and  significant tree and hedge planting which can be required by condition will 
improve the visual amenity of the area.

As a result, the proposed access which takes the shortest direct route, uses a sustainable method 
of construction including a permeable surface and has little impact on the character and 
appearance of the Green Belt in this location present a better visual option than continued ad hoc 
use of the field to access the buildings.

Thus, the development is considered to be acceptable in the specific circumstances. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Ian Ansell
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564481

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	Area Planning Subcommittee East - members photo sheet 16-17

	3 MINUTES
	Minutes
	53 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
	Minutes Public Pack, 07/12/2016 Area Planning Sub-Committee East
	Minutes
	58 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

	Minutes Public Pack, 13/12/2016 Area Planning Sub-Committee East
	Minutes
	65 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL


	7 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

